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FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The loss attributable to owners of Wong's International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to HK$761.7 million, as
compared to the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$266.3 million for the last financial year.

This was mainly attributable to the decrease in the value
of the Group’s properties and share of losses in the
Group’s joint ventures (the “Joint Ventures”) which was
due to a decrease in the value of properties held by
the Joint Ventures. The decrease in value of properties
held by the Group and the Joint Ventures was HK$866.0
million as compared to an increase in value of HK$98.0
million for the last financial year. The decrease reflects
the commercial property market conditions which were
adversely affected by the outbreak of COVID-19. The
decrease in the value of the properties is unrealised and
did not have any impact on the Group’s cash flow. The
properties held by the Group and the Joint Ventures are
mainly for leasing purposes and the rental income had
no significant change during the year.

Besides the decrease in the value of the properties,
the appreciation of Renminbi in the second half of
2020 resulted in a significant exchange loss. The
exchange loss was HK$51.0 million as compared to an
exchange gains of HK$9.2 million for the last financial
year. However, the exchange loss in the consolidated
income statement was offset by the gains on currency
translation difference of HK$131.4 million in other
comprehensive income.
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Chairman’s Statement

FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Loss per share for the year was HK$1.59 as compared
to earnings per share of HK$0.56 for the last financial
year. The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$3,224.6 million, as compared
to HK$3,781.2 million for the last financial year.
Operating loss for the year ended 31 December 2020
was HK$375.1 million, as compared to operating profit
of HK$245.2 million for the last financial year. The
operating loss was driven by decrease in the value of
properties held by the Group and the Joint Ventures.

DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.02
(2019: HK$0.035) per share for 2020. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02
(2019: HK$0.03) per share on or before Tuesday, 6
July 2021 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Monday,
21 June 2021. Payment of such proposed final dividend
is subject to approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, 1 June 2021, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 26 May 2021 to Tuesday, 1 June 2021,
both days inclusive. During this period, no transfer of
shares will be effected. To be eligible to attend and
vote at the meeting, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 25 May 2021.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(continued)

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed on Monday, 21 June 2021 and no transfer of
shares will be effected on that date. To qualify for the
proposed final dividend which is subject to approval
of the shareholders, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 June 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

For the purpose of maintaining a reasonable return
on investment and rewarding shareholders for their
continued support, the Board has adopted a Dividend
Policy for distribution of dividend to the shareholders
in accordance with the Group’s profit performance.
The dividend payout ratio will be based on the profit
attributable to the shareholders excluding share of profit
and loss of joint ventures/associated companies and
change in fair value of investment properties which have
been recorded in the consolidated income statement
after considering various prevailing factors at the time
of declaration of dividend, including but not limited
to financial performance and projected profitability,
liguidity position and capital efficiency, compliance
with financial covenants, dividends received from
subsidiaries, future growth and commitments, potential
investment opportunities, relevant provisions under
the Company’s bye-laws, laws of Bermuda and other
applicable rules and regulations. The Company may
also distribute special dividend from time to time in
addition to the ordinary dividend.

Depending on the situation from time to time, dividend
recommendation and payment shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to the
approval of shareholders, where appropriate. There is
no assurance that dividends will be recommended or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Electronic Manufacturing Service Division
(“EMS Division”)

Revenue for the EMS Division for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$3,157.2 million, as compared
to HK$3,560.0 million for the last financial year. The
segment profit attributable to the EMS Division was
HK$132.8 million, a 16.6% decrease as compared
to HK$159.2 million for the last financial year. The
decrease in the segment net profit was attributable to
reduction in demand as a result of the current trade
tension between Mainland China and the US and
the Group’s manufacturing operations from January
to March 2020 were impacted by the outbreak of
COVID-19.

Property Holding Division

The Property Holding Division reported revenue of
HK$67.5 million, as compared to HK$221.2 million for
the last financial year. The decrease in revenue was
mainly due to revenue of HK$149.7 million recognised
from the sale of 6/F of One Harbour Square in last
financial year. The segment loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$780.1 million as compared to
segment profit of HK$197.9 million for last financial year.
The segment loss was driven by decrease in the value of
properties held by the Group and the Joint Ventures.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total
of HK$3,221.7 million (2019: HK$3,311.6 million)
of banking facilities. Total bank borrowings were
HK$2,038.7 million (2019: HK$1,936.2 million). Cash
and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits
were HK$1,419.1 million at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$1,185.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a net bank
borrowing of HK$619.6 million, as compared to
HK$751.0 million at 31 December 2019. Sufficient
banking facilities and bank balances are available to
meet the cash needs of the Group for its manufacturing
operations as well as Property Holding Division.

Net gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 December
2020 was 0.15 (2019: 0.16). The net gearing ratio was
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total bank borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and short-term
bank deposits.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in United
States dollars and costs and expenses are mainly in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, Chinese Renminbi and Vietnam Dong. Consistent
with its prudent policy on financial risk management,
the Group does not use any foreign exchange hedging
products. The Group recognises the currency risk in
the appreciation of Chinese Renminbi and will closely
monitor and actively manage the risk involved.
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Chairman’s Statement

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and equity attributable to owners of the parent,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

PLEDGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the pledges on the Group’s assets are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed
approximately 3,700 employees. The Group adopts a
remuneration policy which is commensurate with job
nature, qualification and experience of employees.
In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and
employee related insurance benefits, discretionary
bonuses are also rewarded to employees based on
individual performance. The remuneration packages
and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also
provides in-house and external training programs to its
employees.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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PROSPECTS

Following the roll-out of COVID-19 vaccination
programs, there are signs of recovery of world demand.
Recently, the EMS business has also experienced
increase in customer orders. However, the operating
environment is still beset with difficulties. Widespread
pandemic lockdowns continue to hamper supply chains,
customer visits and movement of our staffs among
different facilities of our Group while the recent surge of
demand has resulted in shortage of some materials. The
Directors expect that the year of 2021 will still be full of
challenges.

To cope with increased US tariffs, the EMS business
has established a manufacturing facility in Hai Duong
Province of Vietnam to cater for the needs of many
global customers. This new facility is expected to bring
in new sales opportunities. Even though the progress
of the facility has been somewhat delayed due to
pandemic lockdowns, feedbacks from prospective
customers regarding manufacturing in Vietnam are very
favorable. The EMS business has recently contracted to
lease a new site of about 17,000 square meters of land
for a construction of a 30,000 square meters of floor
area near our present facility for expansion.

Due to the sharp appreciation of Renminbi in the second
half of 2020, the Group incurred an exchange loss of
HK$51.0 million from the translation of the US dollar
deposits held by a subsidiary in China to Renminbi,
the book currency of the Chinese subsidiary. In
consolidation, upon translating the Chinese subsidiary’s
accounts from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars, there
was an offsetting translation gain generated, which
was booked as a gain in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECTS (continued)

To enhance its competitive edge, the EMS business will
continue to focus on customer base expansion, cost
control, operating efficiency and value-added services
to customers, including product design and technology
services. The Directors will monitor current operating
conditions vigilantly putting the health of our employees
and benefits of our business partners in the first priority.

In 2020, due to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic,
the market conditions for commercial properties in Hong
Kong had deteriorated considerably, resulting in a
huge decline in the valuation of commercial properties
held by the Group. Pursuant to generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group needed to book such
decline in value as loss even though such valuation
losses are unrealised and do not have any impact on
the Group’s cash flow. The rental income derived by the
Group from commercial properties held has remained
stable notwithstanding the drop in the valuation of
those properties. As the coronavirus pandemic is
gradually under control, the Directors expect the market
conditions for commercial properties in Hong Kong to
become stabilised.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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AWARD & RECOGNITION

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the ninth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers
and business partners for their continued confidence
in and support to the Group. | would also like to pay
a special tribute to all of our employees for their loyal,
diligent and professional services to the Group.

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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FEEHEER
Bl Net debts to total equity % 2 15.1 16.0 -0.9
BB R
Bkt Borrowings to total equity % 3 47.0 38.7 8.3
2020 2019 Changes
g 3 A2 Financial ratio
R A5 A
MENEL () Current ratio (Times) 4 1.5 1.5 N/A
SRERE Per share data
] (B%1.505T)  BM0.567 i
S (E18) /&7 (Loss)/earnings per share (HK$1.59) HK$0.56 N/A
B EE - Notes:
1. EamBRE = F (BB FEaEs 1. Return on equity % = net (loss) or profit/total equity
2. FEEHBEZE L = (BER-HEEE 2 Net debts to total equity % = (total borrowings — total lease
RE-FeRBEeEEWRTE - SHERITER liabilities — total cash and cash equivalent — short-term bank
SRR deposits)/total equity
3. BERYBRESEaEO = BER BER 3. Borrowings to total equity % = total borrowings/total equity
4. RBELLR = RBEE/RBAEE 4. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
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Five-Year Financial Summary

—EZZEF —ZT-hEFE ZE-NF ZT—tF ZE-RF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BET T BB T BT T BT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4 RESULTS
Wiz Revenue 3,224,636 3,781,156 4,013,546 3,817,543 3,529,374
“E(5I8) /I Operating (loss)/profit (375,056) 245,157 524,818 315,612 366,711
BRETEEL AT (B518) / (Loss)/profit before
bE income tax (735,630) 304,569 1,473,119 513,190 518,482
FrigHt Income tax (26,048) (38,242) (51,370) (33,283) (50,257)
FE(EE)/FB  (Loss)/profit for the year (761,678) 266,327 1,421,749 479,907 468,225
BB AL (EIE),/ (Loss)/profit attributable
FHE to owners (761,674) 266,327 1,421,749 479,907 468,225
RS Non-controlling interests (4) - - - -
BEERER ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
BAE Total assets 7,585,931 8,183,236 8,267,682 6,719,963 6,307,567
BEE Total liabilities 3,252,157 3,177,012 3,447,493 3,203,471 3,322,272
SENEB A ZMERZ  Equity attributable to owners 4,333,774 5,006,220 4,820,185 3,516,488 2,985,291
IR = Non-controlling interests = 4 4 4 4
wEahafE Total equity and liabilities 7,585,931  8,183236 8,267,682 6,719,963 6,307,567
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The Directors hereby present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 which were approved
by them at the board meeting held on the date of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the development,
manufacture, marketing and distribution of electronic
products as well as property holding.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year and
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out on pages 95 to 223 of this Annual Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A detailed analysis of the Group’s turnover and results
by operating segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and
now recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020 as follows:

BT T

HK$'000

ERFEHRE - BERE®0.027T Interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share paid 9,570
MRAHRE - BER

B 21T B ¥0.027T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.02 per share in issue 9,570

19,140
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Directors’ Report

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future development and
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to
12 of this Annual Report. A discussion of the financial
risks and the management of the risks of the Group
are provided in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 12 and the
Financial Highlights on pages 13 and 14 of this Annual
Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility
through minimizing the impacts to the community,
environment and natural resources while safeguarding
the health and safety of the public. The Group actively
controls and endeavors to reduce emissions, waste
and inefficient use of resources and energy. Health,
safety and the environment are the top priorities in the
design of our products, processes and services. Our
manufacturing facilities are constantly managed and
monitored using international environmental systems.

Relationships with employees

The Group considers that employees are valuable
assets of the Group and is committed to building an
amicable and rewarding relationship with its employees.
Employees are remunerated with salary packages
commensurate with their job nature, qualification,
experience and performance. Training is provided to
employees to enhance job performance and progression
within the Group. The Group also works its best to
cultivate a harmonious workplace which enhances
employee performance and company-employee
relationship. In addition, the Group strives to provide a
safe and healthy work environment.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

17



18

EEEREE

Directors’ Report

EBER(E)
HtESH

AEBRBNAELREL  TH2EMRER
RETRE  HURRER  HERFBHEZ
FEE AREREEEHES RERNBL
BHS - BRAGDHEERI K AR K
SHREREHE - AEEETETARER
BHERGHERE BmARBEIZEL
EREBMER2EEEES MESRIFE
EMERMRA -

HEFRHEE z2BE

AEERBRTVAEFBEREPHRE -
AR EERRZEm&RS - BOKRS
BEPZE2HRBEBRBMH - REBUWERRZ
AEES HEFEHELIRPEEE N
% HREEBHEMTEP MERERZIE
RIEERER -

BTHEBEERAN
REFEMAA FAAEERERTED

BTHARBZEHREEFEATE N
FROEERRM -

HEER

BRI E R AEAR - NREBE W EEAL(T
MHAREEEZEIERE M-

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Community engagement

The Group takes pride in participating in community
events and volunteer activities as a key component
of our commitment to corporate responsibility. The
engagements provide opportunities for the Group
and our employees to contribute in improving local
communities. Such activities include making donations,
paying visits to elderly homes and participating in
flag-selling activities etc. Certain companies in the
Group have been awarded the Caring Company Logo by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition
of their active participation in community activities and
good corporate citizenship.

Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group strives to be global strategic business
partners of our customers by providing products
and services that meet or exceed our customers’
requirements for quality, reliability and value. In
accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build
long-term and mutually beneficial relationships with our
suppliers, which play a crucial role in providing high
quality products and ensuring reliable delivery to our
customers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year.

Subsequent events

The Group did not have any material events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable
to the Group’s largest suppliers and customers are as
follows:

EPars
%
RiERR Purchases
—mAHER — the largest supplier 10
—hARHEFEHTE — five largest suppliers combined 34
H & 58 Sales
—ZAEF - the largest customer 40
—hAREFAMHTE — five largest customers combined 72

EEF EBBAIBRGLESMAHESR
KR BIAE% A L) TA 7R 2 fa] By ] 35
WA LR RS 2

T FEHMBEME

AEBBRBERF2¥E  EEABERIIN
$£15H

Lol NS

TENBRARFBHIRNGEHERK
MisE20 ©

i 2
REE 2R AEFHERTERGE P IEREK
B5E33 °

No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) were interested at any time
during the year in the above suppliers or customers.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five years are summarised on page 15.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2020 calculated under the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Bermuda laws, amounted to HK$591,467,000 (2019:
HK$587,405,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of shares
which are imposed by the Company’s Bye-laws or
Bermuda laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in book values of property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other
purposes during the year amounted to HK$264,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel
Mr. Wan Man Keung
Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP
Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JpP

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, Mr. Wan Man
Keung and Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada and Mr. Cheung
Chi Chiu, David, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. Mr. Wan Man Keung wishes to retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and not to offer himself for re-election.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and considers them as independent.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (former name: Wong Chung
Mat, Benedict), aged 69, joined the Group in 1975. He
has been a Director of the Company since June 1990.
In February 2003, he was appointed Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Wong is
the Chairman of the Administrative Committee of the
Company and a director of various other companies
of the Group. He is also a director of Salop Hong
Kong Limited which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He obtained a Master of Science degree in
Operations Research from Ohio State University and was
conferred an Honorary Fellowship by the City University
of Hong Kong. He has over 46 years’ experience in the
electronics industry. Mr. Wong is the father of Ms. Wong
Yin Man, Ada; and brother of Mr. Wong Chung Ah,
Johnny, Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt,
Chung Chui and Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, and
brother-in-law of Ms. Woo Sin Ming, who are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 43, joined the Group
in 2002 and was appointed Director of the Company
in October 2005. She is the Chairperson of the
Risk Management Committee and a member of the
Administrative Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
She is responsible for Central Sourcing and Supply
Management, Finance and other departments of the
Group. She is currently a director of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company
Limited and a member of the Enterprise Support Scheme
Assessment Panel under the Innovation and Technology
Fund. She obtained a Bachelor degree in Industrial
Engineering and a Master of Science in Engineering
Management from University of Southern California.
Ms. Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben;
and a niece of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui, Ms. Wong
Chung Yan, Claudia and Ms. Woo Sin Ming, who are
substantial shareholders of the Company.
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Directors’ Report

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 72, joined the Group
in 1985. He has been a Director of the Company since
June 1990. He is also a member of the Administrative
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He was
formerly the Group’s Financial Controller. In July 2007,
he ceased to be the Group’s Financial Controller and
became a financial adviser of the Group. He is also a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and obtained a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences, a Master of Arts degree in China Development
Studies and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, he
had approximately 10 years’ experience with a major
international firm of accountants.

Mr. Wan Man Keung, aged 69, first joined the Group
in January 1988. After leaving the Group for about 14
months, he rejoined the Group in June 1993. In January
2004, he was appointed as a Director of the Company.
He is also a member of the Administrative Committee of
the Company and a director of certain other companies
of the Group. Whilst maintaining these posts, Mr. Wan
made a transition to becoming a consultant for
providing advisory services for operations and business
development of the Group effective from January 2021.
Mr. Wan obtained a Bachelor degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and
has over 45 years of experience in the electronics
manufacturing industry.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund, aged 66, joined the
Group in April 1992 and subsequently promoted to
Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing in January
2012. He was appointed Director of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Hung is also a member of the
Risk Management Committee of the Company and a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He
has over 43 years of working experience in electronics
manufacturing industry and now has the overall
responsibility of serving a portfolio of customers at
Wong’s Electronics Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
he held various managerial positions in manufacturing,
planning, sales & marketing departments in multinational
and listed companies. Mr. Hung obtained a Diploma
in Industrial Engineering from the Hong Kong
Baptist University and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the City University of Macau.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP, FCPA (Practising),
FCA, FCPA (Aust), FCIS, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK),
BA, FAIA (Hon), CGA (Hon), HonHKAT, RFP (Hon), aged 67,
joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director in April 1999. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Li is the honorary
chairman of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and an
independent non-executive director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport
International Holdings Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited,
China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited and
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. Dr. Li is presently a
member of The 13th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He was a
former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong,
former chairman of its Public Accounts Committee,
past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and former adviser to the Ministry
of Finance on international accounting standards of the
People’'s Republic of China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP, aged 82, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in October
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Dr. Yu is the chairman of the HKI Group of
Companies and a director of a number of manufacturing
and investment companies. He is an independent
non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited and Fu Shek
Financial Holdings Limited. Dr. Yu had served as a
member of the Standing Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and the
Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region acting as its Hong Kong affairs
adviser. He is currently a member of the Standing
Committee of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and permanent honorary president of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JP, aged 82, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2004. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of
the Company. He is presently a common consultant
for both K.C. Ho & Fong and Yap & Lam, Solicitors
and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former president of The Law
Society of Hong Kong and The Law Association for
Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA). He is also a former
Hong Kong Affairs Adviser and has served on various
public and community organizations. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of eSun Holdings
Limited and Hung Hing Printing Group Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David, aged 70, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in November 2015. He is a chartered engineer and
a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology, United Kingdom. He possesses 44
years of extensive experience in technology transfer,
technical management in research and development as
well as strategic business development for high-tech
companies. Mr. Cheung was a former member of the ICT
R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of the Hong Kong
Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
(ASTRI). He is currently a non-executive director of
Ecoinno (H.K.) Limited and a member of the Electrical
Engineering Departmental Advisory Committee of the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung obtained
a Master of Engineering from McMaster University,
Canada, a Master of Science in Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau.

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tin Lun, Byron, aged 53, joined the Group
in January 1997. He is currently Vice President and
responsible for the Group’s Technical Marketing in USA.
Mr. Chan is also a director of certain companies of the
Group, including Wong’s International USA Corporation
which is engaged in the development of the Company’s
original design and manufacturing business in the
North America market. He has more than 31 years of
experience in the field of electronics manufacturing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan has worked in
various leading international manufacturing companies
in USA. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Colorado,
Boulder.
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Directors’ Report

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes, aged 62, joined the
Group in June 2016 as Vice President of Corporate
Finance. He is responsible for all aspects relating to
accounting, finance and taxation of the Company and its
subsidiaries. He is also a director of certain companies
of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor degree of
Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the
Group, he has more than 30 years of experience in
financial management, business control and auditing
with renowned multinational and listed companies as
well as an international audit firm respectively.

Ms. Wong Kit Yee, Kitty, aged 47, joined the Group
in August 2007 and is currently Executive Assistant
to the Chairman and Assistant Vice President of the
Group. She is responsible for overseeing Administration
in Corporate Office in Hong Kong, formulating and
implementing strategies and business plans for the
development of the Group’s property leasing and
management. Ms. Wong is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Ms. Wong accumulated
extensive experience in various functions of office
management. She obtained a Bachelor degree of
Business Administration from the Open University of
Hong Kong.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Effective from 1 January 2021, Mr. Wan Man Keung,
Executive Director of the Company, made a transition to
becoming a consultant for providing advisory services
for operations and business development of the Group
and his annual basic salary has been adjusted to
HK$840,000.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES (continued)

REQATRARBZEFR Long positions in shares of the Company
HNLEBRITRS
BoLt
Approximate
ZERHAE percentage
= &4 Number of of the issued
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares
T A BnEAARZEGER 2 s (M)
Wong Chung Mat, Ben Benef|C|a| owner and interest of controlled 136,828,569 28.60%
corporation (Note)
TEH ERnfEAA
Wong Yin Man, Ada Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%
bR EnEEA
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel Beneficial owner 1,837,500 0.38%
R 58 ERnfEAA
Wan Man Keung Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%
REiil EnBEEA
Yu Sun Say Beneficial owner 500,000 0.10%
B 5E - Note:

TEREERRAE (REZESHSRLBAE
136,828,569[% It (7 R 15 A =
A

G NARE
° &%Hx@iﬁﬂ%?%@

(a) 1,000,000 H BT AKLCEBATE °

(b)  135,828,569% i% 7 B3Salop Hong Kong Limited
BE MZARRAEATAKREESEES RITH -

BRAXFFEEEN RZE_TF+=A
=+—H ARAEFSHETETHABRE
EXEBIHMEABENAR T A
EE(EEREBESFRBAEGRMIEXVE) 2K
7 HEROKEFHEEBLHERESF R
Hfﬂ%{ﬁu%3521%%%*%?2%5%%Wzﬁé
WmIORE  HAREBRETRAE AR
BRIz EmIORE o

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 136,828,569 shares in the Company. These shares were held
in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr.
personally.

Wong Chung Mat, Ben

(b) 135,828,569 shares were held by Salop Hong Kong Limited, which
was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2020,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2020, persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or

FIB6IEMTEEF 2Lk MAZ#EZFSA B  underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
mr register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
REQATRARBZEFR Long positions in shares of the Company
NIEEBITRG
Baot
TERFRER HH Approximate
Name of ZERHAE percentage
substantial 514 Number of of the issued
shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares
EmEAA (M)
Salop Hong Kong Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 135,828,569 28.39%
S5t A (PFifaE2)
HSBC International Trustee Trustee (Note 2) 119,307,699 24.93%
Limited
T AR EnEEA EERZLEZEETZ
BN (BE3)
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny Beneficial owner, interest of spouse 90,163,532 18.84%
and founder of a discretionary trust
(Note 3)
ExnEAB A (M5E3(c))
Kong King International Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3(c)) 87,928,532 18.38%
=5t A (MF5E3(c))
Mountainview International Trustee (Note 3(c)) 87,928,532 18.38%
Limited
Ealisg 1 ERBEBARKRFER 2 # (HiE4)
Wong Chung Yin, Michael Beneficial owner and joint interest 78,526,001 16.41%
(Note 4)
A 15 AR HRARAE 2w ML BRER (H5T4)
Woo Sin Ming Jomt interest and interest of spouse 78,526,001 16.41%
(Note 4)
TARRE EnBBE ARZEGER 2 #am (M55)
Wong Chung Yan, Claudia Beneficial owner and interest of 38,224,881 7.99%
controlled corporation (Note 5)
ExnEAR A (KE5(b))
Floral Inc. Beneficial owner (Note 5(b)) 35,073,052 7.33%
F AR 2REEFEZBIA (Hi5E6)
Everitt, Chung Chui Founder of a discretionary trust 31,379,167 6.56%
(Note 6)
EnEB A (KM3E6)
Sycamore Assets Limited Beneficial owner (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
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HSBC International Trustee Limited#® % /A (4R
BRESEHEERM) RARF119,307,699K
B RHEER ZERNEBUTINEE :
(a) 87,928,532 &k M BAKong King
International LimitediR & — 18 2 # {5 T3
& MHSBC International Trustee Limited
RAEFTEZETA - BH2E T XM FE3(c) °

31,379,1670% f% /» FiSycamore Assets
LimitediR 5 — B 2 B E7E#H A - MHSBC
International Trustee Limited &% {E5E 212
FEA B2 T XK -

TFRBEEHRA (REEFRBEED) AAQF]
90,163,532 M P HAE R - ZERMHBBIUT
F0iEE -

1,000,000 A& B £ A 15 58 £ E A
BA-

(a)

1,235,000 M ELLE L2 B FEZE
ZEHEA -

87,928,532k &k BHKong King
International LimitediR & — B 2 E 551 #
E-mMEIABMAEERB A (REFSFRPE
&) 7% 125C.2 8l A - HSBC International
Trustee Limited8 & {55E A ° Kong King
International LimitedfiMountainview
International Limited2&# A& + Mm% A7) Al
FAHSBC International Trustee Limited® &
A - TAEM%EE « Kong King International
Limited » Mountainview International
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Directors’ Report

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

Salop Hong Kong Limited was a company wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben. Please refer to the
Note under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief
executives”.

HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed (by virtue of the
SFO) to be interested in 119,307,699 shares in the Company. These
shares were held in the following capacity:

(a) 87,928,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which HSBC
International Trustee Limited was the trustee. Please refer to
Note 3(c) below.

31,379,167 shares were held by Sycamore Assets Limited
under a discretionary trust, of which HSBC International
Trustee Limited was the trustee. Please refer to Note 6 below.

Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to
be interested in 90,163,532 shares in the Company. These shares
were held in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny
personally.

1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife of
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.

87,928,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung
Ah, Johnny was regarded as the founder (by virtue of the SFO)
and HSBC International Trustee Limited was the trustee. Kong
King International Limited was wholly-owned by Mountainview
International Limited, which was wholly-owned by HSBC
International Trustee Limited. Each of Mr. Wong Chung
Ah, Johnny, Kong King International Limited, Mountainview
International Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited
was deemed to be interested in the same block of 87,928,532
shares. Please refer to Note 2(a) above.
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SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

4.

Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming, were
deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same block of
78,526,001 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 50,458,041 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
personally.

(b) 28,067,960 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
and Ms. Woo Sin Ming jointly.

Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia was deemed (by virtue of the SFO)
to be interested in 38,224,881 shares in the Company. These shares
were held in the following capacity:

(a) 3,151,829 shares were held by Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia
personally.

(b) 35,073,052 shares were held by Floral Inc., which was
wholly-owned and controlled by Ms. Wong Chung Yan,
Claudia. Each of Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia and Floral Inc.
was deemed to be interested in the same block of 35,073,052
shares.

Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 31,379,167 shares in the Company which were held
by Sycamore Assets Limited under a discretionary trust, of which
Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was regarded as the founder (by virtue of
the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited was the trustee.
Sycamore Assets Limited was wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited. Each of Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui, Sycamore Assets
Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the same block of 31,379,167 shares. Please refer to
Note 2(b) above.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 December 2020, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme came into effect
on 2 June 2010 (the “Old Scheme”) was expired on
2 June 2020 and a new share option scheme was
adopted on 26 June 2020 (the “New Scheme”).

There was no outstanding options granted under the Old
Scheme. No option has been granted under the New
Scheme since its adoption date and up to 31 December
2020.

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Old Scheme

A summary of the Old Scheme disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules is as follows:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Old Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge participants who have contributed or
will contribute to the Group.

2. Participants

The participants are Directors of the Company
(including Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors) and full
time or part time employees of any member of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Old Scheme (continued)

3.

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Old Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 20% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Old Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of
the Company, unless approved by shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Old Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board
to each grantee at the time of making an offer, and
in any event such period of time shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1 year
for which an option must be held after its date of
grant before such an option can be exercised.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Old Scheme (continued)

7.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of an option must be
paid by the grantee to the Company within 21 days
from the date on which an offer letter is delivered to
the grantee.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Life of the Old Scheme

The Old Scheme was expired on 2 June 2020.
Upon expiration of the Old Scheme, no further

options shall be offered but in all other aspects, the
provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in force.
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BRETEHSE (&) SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)
et &l New Scheme

RIBLETARA - FHErSIMBRENT

A summary of the New Scheme disclosed in accordance

with the Listing Rules is as follows:

B 1. Purpose
B e ERBEASEBERER S The purpose of the New Scheme is to reward the
EEREEK2HE (R TXE2R eligible participants (as described in paragraph 2
i) WEEFEEARANT RERE below) who have contributed or will contribute to
ZEENR  BHRSAARRERKRS the Group and to encourage them to work towards
Z{BE - enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.
SHE 2. Participants
AERREEREEES R ATY Eligible participants include Directors (including
FFEHAEEBEMER 2 AEEFEM Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
KERRIZES (BIEHNTESE - IEH and Independent Non-executive Directors)
TEERBIIIFNTES) KEE (T and employees (whether full time or part time
wEEBERES) - employees) of any member of the Group who
the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.
AFRITZRAAH 3. Total number of shares available for issue

EATERIBE A8 R AR RMEA E A
BREEEEMERITEZAER
B EM AT RE BT 2D &R &
BBER  NMEHEAXARTEREEITR
19 230% °
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The overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

New Scheme (continued)

4,

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any grantee
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
under the New Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of shares of the Company in issue,
unless approved by shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The option period of a particular option is the
period during which the option can be exercised,
such period to be determined and notified by the
Board to each grantee at the time of making the
offer, and in any event such period of time shall not
expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1
year for which an option must be held after its date
of grant before such an option can be exercised
under the terms of the New Scheme.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of an option must be
paid by the grantee to the Company within 21 days
from the date on which an offer letter is delivered to
the grantee.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

New Scheme (continued)
8. Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
9. Life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years
commencing on 26 June 2020 up to and including
25 June 2030.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option schemes, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its
associated corporations, or its specified undertaking
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its associated corporations or any other body
corporate.



fR BR #8165

FARARRBIMEFLRZBBEHE  REE
RERIDARTEZBIRETBIRRIN -

iR K48 AT

BRAKBRARBNFE ZFBENESY
BHRRMEET

BEALXRS

fid 47 & B 5 IR MY B8N AT E A X 5 1
REAER S AARAIEET ETRAUNZE
B EE M ERTE (WE) o

EERRG REREGHNHZER
B

REFZERERHNFRNEARE  ~RARES
W ARFEAE (AT B A =] 3 HAEAAIFY B A Rl AT RT
VEAFARERBIEER S  ZHRAH
FERGEMERIER 2 EANELRS -

EERBEY

BRARBEERRBFAS EEEREM
ZEE WEEARBRHEMBE ARG LE
AHMARBHEMBRRA T NMHEER
CEEMERIN AIABIFERZ I Z R
BH -

EEERES

Directors’ Report

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the year, save for the share option
scheme which subsisted at the year end.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements constitutes a
connected transaction, the disclosure and approval
requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had, whether directly
or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable
by the Company or its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), with any Director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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PERMITTED DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND
INSURANCE

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that every
Director or other officer of the Company and the
liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office, to the extent permitted by the laws.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal
actions that may be brought against its Directors and
officers.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the details of the significant
investments are set out below:

BERERIELLA
NG = 8 A 3L itk Bh BHERGHEE Proportion of T EX7
Name of Place of Number of ownership Principal
company incorporation shares held interest  activities
REERRES REER
Talent Chain BVI 357 35.7% Investment holding
Investments Limited
BRIREGRAF (ME) FF A iE A MERH
Crown Opal Investment Hong Kong N/A 35.7%  Property holding

Limited (Note)

MsE: WEREEABR AR ATalent Chain Investments

LimitedZ {2~ &) °
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Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited is a subsidiary of Talent Chain
Investments Limited.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, net investment in Talent Chain
Investments Limited and Crown Opal Investment Limited
was HK$2,142.2 million, which amount exceeds 5% of
the total assets of the Group, and the fair value was
HK$ 2,179.4 million, which represents 28.7% of the total
assets of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the share of
losses of Talent Chain Investments Limited and Crown
Opal Investment Limited, which included in the share of
losses of joint ventures, was HK$324.1 million.

The investment in Talent Chain Investments Limited and
Crown Opal Investment Limited is holding a commercial
building in Kwun Tong, Two Harbour Square. It is the
Group’s preference to hold its interest in its attributable
share of the property project as much as possible for
leasing purposes after taking into account the Group’s
financial requirements.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2020, the
loans advanced to Open Vantage Limited and Talent
Chain Investments Limited, the joint venture companies
of the Group, amounted to HK$1,134.7 million, which
amount exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2020. The advances are unsecured
and interest-free. The advances were made during the
financial years ended 31 December from 2008 to 2020.

The summarised financial information of the joint venture

companies are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES (continued)

On 24 November 2015 and 15 December 2015, the
Company issued an announcement and a circular
respectively in relation to the provision of additional
financial assistance to Talent Chain Investments Limited
which constituted a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details were set out in
the announcement and circular.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year or
on demand are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. Bank loans and other borrowings
repayable within a period of more than 1 year are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. No
interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Group’s performance on environmental and social
matters is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
the Company believes that the number of shares of the
Company which are in the hands of the public is above
the relevant prescribed minimum percentage.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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The Company is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to provide an overview of
the Group’s management of significant environmental,
social and governance issues. The report has been
prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange ESG Guide”) which is applicable for
the financial year of 2020. In the opinion of the Directors
of the Company, for the year under review, the Company
has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the Stock Exchange ESG Guide.

It is the commitment of the Group to manufacture and
supply good quality products, while caring about the
community, environment and natural resources and
safeguarding the health and safety of the public. The
Group has set up business standards and ethical
practices which enable us to fulfill our commitments
to our stakeholders, including employees, customers,
suppliers, shareholders and the communities. We
realise that dialogues with stakeholders as well as their
feedback and concerns are crucial for the continuous
enhancement and growth of the Group. Our stakeholder
engagement involved obtaining input from our key staff
members of various divisions and making reference
to the ongoing communication with other external
stakeholders. Materiality assessment was conducted
through evaluation of such input by the management.
The ESG areas and aspects stated in this Report are
considered as material and have significant impact on
the Group. With the awareness of such ESG areas and
aspects, there is opportunity for improvement through
enhancement of our operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Report covers the core activities of the Group which
involve operations of the three manufacturing factories
located in Shenzhen, Vietnam and Suzhou under our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Welco Wong's
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited, Welco Technology
Vietnam Company Limited and Welco Technology
(Suzhou) Limited, respectively. Furthermore, in respect
of the social aspect, the Company’s principal office
in Hong Kong is also involved. Additional information
in relation to the Group’s corporate governance is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual
Report.

KMEBEENERE  HEREREE
Our ESG areas of concern

TESMEREREERIE
* Workplace Quality and
Employee Relationship

PR B 4D REIR B
e Emissions and Energy « Employment
Conservation BT 2R
FA7K . Labour Standards
e Water Consumption BERE RIE
FEZEYEIER « Development and Training
* Waste Management BEHEYTS
{52 A B fth BDR + Health and Safety
e Other Use of Resources LIEIE
* Operating Practices
HrEsEER
« Supply Chain Management
« Product Responsibility
TRAERZ REERREENS M k&5

Also covered in the Corporate
Governance Report of this
Annual Report

.

Anti-corruption

HRKE
e Community Investment
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to minimise the impacts to the
environment and natural resources and continuously
improve the environmental sustainability of the business.
Qur vision is to bring good quality products to the
customers around the world while actively control and
endeavor to reduce emissions, wastes and inefficient
use of resources and energy. An Environmental, Health
and Safety Committee (“EHSC”) has been established
to oversee environmental, health and safety matters.
Our manufacturing facilities are constantly managed
and monitored under international environmental quality
systems (ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001).

Our Environmental Policy includes:

- Educate and motivate all our employees to be
accountable and responsible for environment
protection.

- Prevent pollution through evaluation of
manufacturing processes and materials to
eliminate or minimise environmental impact due to
hazardous substances or wastes.

- I[dentify hazards in all activities, and take
appropriate actions to control risks and avoid
serious injuries.

- Conserve all resources through efficient usage.

- Comply with all relevant environmental laws and
government requirements.

- Review the effectiveness of the environmental
management system through regular audits for
continuous improvements.

- Meet international hazardous substance
regulations and green requirements from specific
customers.

- Share and address compliance concerns with all
interested parties.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation

We have taken rigorous efforts to enhance and upgrade
the environmental facilities and improve the capabilities
in processing and reducing wastes and emissions
related to hazardous elements in the manufacturing
process.

Our air emissions were generated mainly by company
vehicles. In 2020, our NO,, SO, and PM were 1,555.01
kgs, 1.25 kgs and 108.25 kgs respectively. Comparing
with the result in 2019, the decrease was mainly due
to lesser usage of vehicles as the manufacturing
operations were impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19
in early 2020. Relevant departments have been taking
measures to maintain vehicles in good conditions in
order to minimise air emission.

Our greenhouse gas emissions were contributed mainly
by electricity consumptions, company vehicles and
carbon emissions from the production machines. In
2020, our greenhouse gas emission was 17,104 tons
and electricity consumptions was 31,421,206 kwh.
Comparing with the result in 2019, there was decrease
on the greenhouse gas emission as manufacturing
operations were impacted by the outbreak of
COVID-19 in early 2020. The Company considered
great importance on energy efficiency to minimise the
greenhouse gas emission.

We conducted regular environmental testing through
government certified laboratories with respect to
international standards and government laws and
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation (continued)

Actions we have taken to reduce air emissions, emission
of CO,, energy consumption; and improve energy
efficiency include:

- Replaced facility equipment and machinery
including elevators and chillers for efficiency
improvement.

- Installed timers, switches and light sensors to
control the air conditioning and lighting in common
corridors and offices for energy saving.

- Installed variable frequency device to circulating
water pumps in air conditioning system for
efficiency improvement.

- Replaced various general lights to LED lights.
- Adjusted and optimised the operating parameters
of the central air-conditioning chiller for higher

efficiency.

- Cleaned the heat exchanger of the air-conditioning
equipment for higher heat exchange efficiency.

- Power off equipment in the production line during
the weekend.

- Applied window films to reduce energy
consumption for air conditioning.



R HEBREGRES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R{R (&)

/3

BB N EEERERE L AKKEEHER
A TET# KA R

— BEAEN L EBKEBEFRAEHRIE

JKBEZE

— HEIRMBRELEARKERAIKESE
DA YETF

— REKFEEEIFHOBKER-
—E-TFEMFEKE AE290,2951F - IR -F

—NEFENIN4.65% @ REAE2019B M FEFH
HRAEFRIAR AN BRI TR ALE -

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Water Consumption

We endeavor to conserve water effectively in the
operations and implemented water conservation
programs as follow:

- Replaced the current normal faucet with the
automatic sensor faucet.

- Installed the water tap with sensor for hands
washing in factories and canteen.

- Promoted and motivated employees to support the
water-saving program.

In 2020, water consumption was 290,295 tons which
was increased 4.65% by comparing with the result
in 2019 due to increase in washing hand frequency
during COVID-19 and new factory started production in
Vietnam.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste Management

In 2020, hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes
were 1,030 tons and 1,011 tons respectively. Comparing
with the result in 2019, hazardous wastes increased
mainly due to the volume increase for the ultrasonic
aqueous cleaning to clean the PCBAs in accordance
with the customers’ production process requirements.
With the aim to create a sustainable society, we
conduct strict classification of hazardous wastes
and non-hazardous wastes, and hazardous wastes
are stored in special areas, handled by well-trained
employees in accordance with working instructions and
disposed through accredited vendors.

Waste reduction and recycling have been promoted and
implemented in the factories. We recycled solder dross
from the wave soldering machines to reduce the amount
of hazardous wastes. We returned some of the chemical
containers and packaging to the suppliers to reuse and
recycle. We used recycles boxes to reduce the use of
packing materials.

Other Use of Resources

Package materials are used to protect our products
in order to minimise the risk of damage during
transportation. In 2020, package materials used was
1,329 tons which was lower than the usage in 2019.

We aim to minimise the impacts to the environment
while our electronic manufacturing business consume
significant amount of energy and resources. By
implementing lean manufacturing, automation and
optimizing logistics within the factories, we strive
to improve our resources and energy efficiencies,
productivity and to reduce the use of raw materials.
Environmental targets and plans are conveyed to the
employees to maintain an environmental cautious
workplace.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Key Performance Indicators

HEWHE Quantitative disclosure

RRENER —T-FTF —T-NF

Key
Performance
Indicators 2020 2019

RERBER (R T)
Air emissions (kgs)

A
- NO, A1 1,555.01 1,731.80

matm
- SO, A1 1.25 1.62

FERLY)
- PM A1 108.25 120.55
=R ASBER (W)
Greenhouse gas emission (tons) A1.2 17,104 18,803
Tl B aR = REBBEN

(RGBS Tl e 8 HE a2
Greenhouse gas emission per revenue

(tons per revenue HK$ ' million) A1.2 5.47 5.34
BEREREY ()
Hazardous waste (tons) A1.3 1,030 699
19U 3 B8 (i ) 15 )

(REE¥ A& T E SN2
Hazardous waste per revenue

(tons per revenue HK$ ' million) A1.3 0.33 0.20
mEREEY) (HE)
Non-hazardous waste (tons) A1.4 1,011 1,038
BRGRBEUNESEREY

(REEY A& T s E S 2
Non-hazardous waste per revenue

(tons per revenue HK$ ' million) A1.4 0.32 0.29
BEREE - REE (TRE)
Energy consumption — Electricity (kwh) A2.1 31,421,206 32,093,800
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R (%) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
BARENESR (&) Key Performance Indicators (continued)
HERE (&) Quantitative disclosure (continued)

BREREE —E=-TF _—_T-NF
Key

Performance

Indicators 2020 2019

B EEMRRERERE
—REE(REEKEETKENREETRE)

Energy consumption per revenue A2.1 10,044 9,113
— Electricity (kwh per revenue HK$ million)

FEKE (1)
Water consumption (tons) A2.2 290,295 277,383

Bl mRENFEKE
(REE¥As T EFKENEE)
Water consumption per revenue
(tons per revenue HK$'million) A2.2 92.79 78.76

BEMERE (BE)
Packing material use (tons) A2.5 1,329 1,660

BRRELNBEEMEEAE
(REEEASTWENERBEE)
Packing material use per revenue
(tons per revenue HK$'million) A2.5 0.42 0.47

b2 IREREEERAT 2020 F#
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Key Performance Indicators (continued)

—RIEE General disclosure
BREVER =4 0]
Key Performance
Indicators Section
HURE S E R R TISER BEr R B K BE IR
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and A1.5 Emissions and Energy
results achieved Conservation
HEREEERBEEEMN A - REEME R
BIREESEERAEKR
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes A1.6 Waste Management
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
Ha it BE IR AR 5T 81 T IS R BERU B K Be IR
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and A2.3 Emissions and Energy
results achieved Conservation
IR K a5 8 R AT S AR FAoK
Description of water efficiency initiatives and A2.4 Waste Consumption
result achieved
M EBEDEHRBRARERNEARZE RE KR RR&EEB R
EBREUTENTE
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the A3.1 In the last paragraph for

environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them

M El@ERNERAE FRERBBIIAKZEEIT  Note: Revenue of Electronic Manufacturing Service division is used to
FE evaluate the above performance.
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SOCIAL
Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
Employment

We consider that employees are our valuable assets and
are committed to building an amicable and rewarding
relationship with the employees.

Our policy upholds a fair and equal treatment in areas of
recruitment and promotion, compensation and dismissal,
working hours, diversity and other benefits and welfare.
We adopt a remuneration policy which is commensurate
with job nature, qualification and experience of
employees. In addition to the provision of annual
bonuses and employee related insurance benefits,
discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to employees
based on individual performance. Remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed periodically to
ensure that compensation and benefits are in line with
the market-competitive pay level. We arrange with
some hospitals in China to ensure our expatriates can
receive immediate medical services when working
outside their home countries. The Group is committed
to maintaining good corporate governance, achieving a
highest standard of integrity, probity and accountability
by enforcing whistle-blowing policy. Employees at all
levels are expected to conduct themselves with integrity,
impartiality and honesty which enable our stakeholders
to have trust and faith in the Group to take care of their
needs and to fulfill its social responsibility.

In the areas of recruitment and promotion, compensation
and dismissal, statutory laws and regulations are strictly
complied with. Overtime is on voluntary basis and is
compensated according to the local laws.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Employment (continued)

We value diversity, equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination in our workforce regardless of
gender, race, age, marital status and nationality. To
promote the gender sensitivity concept in the daily work
of our staff, the Company has joined the gender focal
point network (“GFP Network”) for listed companies set
up by the Labour and Welfare Bureau and the Women’s
Commission of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government since 2016. Under the GFP
Network, our designated representatives will serve as
the contact and resource persons for communication
and collaboration on gender-related matters between
the Company and the Government with a target to
enhance our gender awareness and understanding of
gender mainstreaming.

Labour Standards

We prohibit the employment of child labour in pursuance
of the International Labor Organization Conventions,
national laws or any other applicable law or standard.
We also prohibit all kinds of forced or compulsory labour
under any conditions, including bonded, forced and/
or compulsory prison labour to work. We also follow
the highest standard regarding the social insurance
requirements for the employees’ contributions.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Development and Training

We allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical staff force that will contribute to
the success of the Group.

Our commitment to staff development is also aligned
with the expectation that authorised institutions should
engage and deploy personnel with sufficient skills,
knowledge and experience for the discharge of their
duties. There are reinforcement and refresher training
programs to ensure that employees are in possession
of the latest information and skills for carrying out
their duties with the highest standards, for examples,
leadership training, team building and supervisory
skills, safety and sales product and technical training,
etc. In addition, we also sponsor and provide time-off
for employees who take external training programs
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. We have
internal certified trainers to train relevant employees for
required technical certifications. Employees may also
join external training programs on certifications required.
We also recruit some graduates each year to take up
first level jobs and develop them to the upper levels, e.g.
technicians, buyer, planner, etc.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing and ensuring healthy
and safe working conditions and environment free
from danger and hazards to our employees. It is
our principle that occupational safety and health of
employees should be given the first and foremost
consideration at work. We implement our safety
management system in accordance with the OHSAS
18001 standard. Health and safety issues concerning
our employees are escalated to the EHSC for decisions
and actions. In addition, certain specific positions, such
as nurse and safety officers, are employed to ensure
that the workplace is safe and that safety device and
protections are adequate to avoid any possible injuries
arising from our work. An examination of whether the
workplace is contaminated by particles is conducted by
a government-recognised third party on an annual basis.
We also arrange relevant workers to take body check
periodically. Furthermore, we provide our employees
with regular intensive training programs to alert their
safety awareness.

To provide relief on job pressure, we organise and
encourage employees to participate the recreational
activities organised by the Group such as annual dinner,
Christmas party, birthday gathering, interest class and
outing from time to time. However, to safeguard the
health and safety of the employees during COVID-19,
certain activities were suspended in 2020.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

We have suppliers from different regions globally. A
supplier management system is established for selecting
and qualifying suppliers to ensure the quality of the
purchased materials complies with the relevant laws
and regulations. Based on adequate qualification,
suppliers are subject to assessment and on-site audits
on product quality as well as capabilities and quality
consistency tests made by our quality department.
The Group only makes purchases from suppliers listed
in Approved Vendor List. Special requirements on
business ethics, health and safety environment and
public responsibilities are confirmed by suppliers before
approval.

Product Responsibility

Bringing high quality and safe products to our
customers around the world is our main objective. Our
Policy includes:

- Achieve total customer satisfaction through total
commitment to quality.

- Operate our system to fulfill customers’
requirements, international laws and regulations
as well as management’s direction.

- Comply with all relevant legislative requirements
on environmental occupational health and safety.

Product quality and safety are ensured by defining
correct manufacturing process and process controls.
Regular product inspections by both internal and
external professional parties also constitute an important
part of the overall safety program. Reliability tests
are conducted to evaluate product risks. Our quality
systems are in compliance with international standards
like ISO 9001, TS 16949 and ISO 13485 standards.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Anti-corruption

Our Code of Conduct provides guidelines to all of
our staff to meet the high standards of integrity and
honesty in their daily operation internally and externally
in order to prevent and detect any kinds of bribery
and corruption prohibited by local laws and internal
regulations. This is also to ensure that the Group
operates to the high standards of business behaviour
and ethics in our engagement with customers,
business partners, shareholders, employees and the
business community. Employees are required to sign
an undertaking not to engage in any acts of corruption
when being employed. Business partners are notified
of the Group’s Supplier General Rules of Conduct to
ensure their integrity in the dealings with the Group. We
conduct periodical training in respect of these policies
to employees and refreshing training to employees
involved in purchasing and engineering every year. We
also conduct regular seminars on integrity every year.
We have zero tolerance towards noncompliance of the
Group’s anti-corruption policy.

In addition, in order to achieve the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability, we have adopted
a whistle-blowing program to encourage disclosure
of any misconduct or irregularities to the Compliance
Officer directly in a confidential way. All reported cases
are handled with care by the Group and are investigated
in a fair and proper manner.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the ninth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

The Group also participated in various events organised
by voluntary organizations to support and enhance
family functioning, and endeavor to contribute to the
building of a humane and caring society in Hong
Kong. We support fund raising for providing immediate
assistance to those suffered from misfortunes and to
promote environmental protection in community.

Over the years, we have been taking an active role in
various volunteering works, charity events and education
donation with an aim to create shared value and support
the people in need. Besides engaging our employees to
participate in those community and charity events, we
encourage them to bring along their family members.

In 2020, the direction of our community services
was focused on supporting the public with epidemic
prevention materials in order to minimise the risk of
exposure to coronavirus.
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During 2020, the Company donated tablets to the local
hospital for helping the patients, especially for those
who without smart phone, to communicate with their
families amid the COVID-19 pandemic.

R-ZB-_ZSERBLTRFESHE A2 FEBGive2Asia Foundation Limited REEEROEFHERE
MEE - BEAPLRER -

The Company gave away medical grade masks among the social welfare institutions, elderly
centre and school via Give2Asia Foundation Limited amid the outbreak of coronavirus in 2020.

Yan Chai
Hospital
Social Services

Masks Distribution
Feb 2020 Hong Kong

HRFECERIEREOE - LFERFHA T  We donated face masks to Yan Chai Hospital for

REEE ABEODSHCEER D% FH preventing the spread of the novel coronavirus. Such

R % - flankE - BHE AT REWA face masks were distributed by Yan Chai Hospital to

REF o their recipients such as elderly, person with disabilities
and low-income families etc.
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e (E) SOCIAL (continued)
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Barefoot Doctor & GiveZAsia

Masks Distribution Campaign

BiROSF RO ME A Face masks donated to Barefoot Doctors Limited

e ] Masks Delivered to ﬁGm-e.ZASia

Yan Chai Hospital
Wong Wha San Secondary School
21 Feb 2020 Hong Kong
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Masks Delivred to

Sage Elderly Home
22 Feb 2020 Hong ng
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BE O ZE % ZFE Face masks donated to elderly home
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In response to the measures of local government in China in containing the epidemic, our
Shenzhen factory participated in various community and charity activities during 2020.

=0 & | 8B B T)E®) Hair cut caring service for workers

SRE R E I EE Free motor vehicle disinfection
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FE R THE®EEBESE Free health check caring service for workers
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Mooncake sharing by labour union and Mid-Autumn Festival charity activities

BB —E-—9F=A=+H Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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The Company is committed to the establishment of
good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal control, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company has complied with
the code provisions under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except that (a) the
positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
occupied by the same person, which deviates from code
provision A.2.1; (b) none of the existing Independent
Non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term but every Director is now subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company under Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of
the Company, which deviates from code provision A.4.1;
(c) the Company does not have the present intention to
establish a Nomination Committee in view that the Board
itself shall discharge all duties expected to be dealt with
by a Nomination Committee, which deviates from code
provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4.

During the year of 2020, the Board had reviewed and,
if required, made necessary changes to the corporate
governance practices of the Company in order to ensure
continued compliance with the CG Code. Details are
disclosed in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for
its approval. Pursuant to the schedule, the Board is
mainly responsible for formulating corporate strategies,
approving business plans and supervising the
Company’s financial and management performance.
Matters which may be discussed in Board meetings
include the formulation of the Group’s strategies
and policies; approval of significant business,
management and financial matters, annual budgets,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital commitments;
approval of matters relating to the Company’s
constitution and share capital, and change of board
members and auditors; establishment of board
committees; review of corporate governance and the
maintenance of appropriate risk management and
internal control systems.

The Company has established an Administrative
Committee which has all the general powers delegated
by the Board to deal with administration and daily
operation of the Company save as those matters set
out in the schedule of matters reserved to the Board
mentioned above. The Administrative Committee
currently comprises four Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the
Administrative Committee), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada,
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Wan Man Keung.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The Administrative Committee also delegates specific
tasks to the management, which includes the
preparation of accounts; implementation of strategies
and policies approved by the Board; day-to-day
monitoring of budgets; implementation of specific
business and work projects; implementation of corporate
governance, risk management and internal control
procedures and other compliance matters. Management
presents reports to the Administrative Committee (and
other delegated Board Committee) for its review and
guidance whenever necessary.

In order to ensure equal, timely, effective, accurate
and proper disclosure of inside information under
the requirements of Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Company
has identified a team of officers and executives with
knowledge and expertise to assist the Board for
assessing the nature and materiality of potential inside
information and determining whether public disclosure
is required subject to Board approval. The procedures
and documentation in this relation are under review of
the Company’s Internal Compliance Control Department.
Continuous training shall be provided to officers and
relevant employees (who are likely to be in possession
of inside information) for handling and reporting
potential inside information. Also, to minimise the risk of
unauthorised or inconsistent disclosure, only designated
persons are authorised to discuss the Company’s
corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
and other members of the public.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors
and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors (including
relationships among the members of the Board) are set
out on pages 22 to 26 of this Annual Report.
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ESERITRERES (M) BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

BEEECR T _TFLITUAEHEE  The Board held four regular Board meetings in 2020

SR ANEFEITR)  UiTiw AR RF 2 at approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the

BEERES - 8% IR - lREBGK - A overall strategy, operation, financial performance,

BERENAEERS - EBERBMRUKL  dividend policy, risk management and internal control

BEEHFMEF - systems, corporate governance practices and Directors’
remuneration.

ZiEEerHez L ARR T -F4F The attendance of the Directors at the four regular Board
RERBFRAECEEEEERNAT ¢ meetings and the 2020 annual general meeting of the
Company was as follows:

EZEERLEER BRRASHESR
Attendance at Attendance at
Board meetings general meeting

HITES Executive Directors
FRREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben

(FEFITHAAZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 3/4 1/1
FTEHZLT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4 1/1
fRF 18 L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4 1/1
R R S Mr. Wan Man Keung 4/4 1/1
A& i JIE 4 A4 Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 4/4 1/1
BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FPREF LT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4/4 1/1
BHRAELT Dr. Yu Sun Say 4/4 0/1
BEXELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 4/4 1/1
SRR A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 4/4 1/1

B EXXRratESN - RENR - ERBEMES  Save as mentioned above, the Chairman held a separate
HBEZT  TFEBIIEHRTEERINETIT  meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
B—XEE - without the presence of other Directors during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

In view of the risk under COVID-19, Dr. Yu Sun Say
(being an Independent Non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) did
not attend the 2020 annual general meeting of the
Company. Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2, he had
appointed any member of the Remuneration Committee
as his delegate to attend and answer relevant
questions at the meeting on behalf of the Remuneration
Committee.

Before holding of a Board meeting, the Board is
supplied with all necessary information to enable it
to consider the matters to be discussed. A formal
agenda is followed in all Board meetings. All business
transacted at the Board meetings is documented in the
minutes of such meeting. Some Board decisions are
made by way of written resolutions of all Directors. All
Board members have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. If necessary, Directors also
have access to external professional advice at the
expense of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as Directors of a listed company.
The Company introduces and recommends relevant
training courses and reading materials to the Directors
from time to time.

BUNESEHORARGREEN —ZT -F4F Each of the Directors has provided to the Company a
WNIEZEIZ 428 ARSI Z AT record of training received during the year of 2020. The
means of such training are as follows:
FINFR Means of Training
%‘Lﬁ%% Executive Directors

¥y ke M@ EEILBEME Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben e-training/
(EF#{TLB? az) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) reading material
TE8& L @ EEIBEEME Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada e-training/
reading material
BRF 21 + M@ E1Edl, BEME Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel e-training/
reading material
BRBEE W L1531 BIEM R Mr. Wan Man Keung e-training/
reading material
BESKJIE % A& @ EEILBEME Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund e-training/
reading material

BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREB LT gasRe e #8EF|,  Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric briefing/conference/
EHe HEME e-training/forum/
BRI e,/ reading material/
Tt training course/
webinar/workshop
R il . 3R 2 Dr. Yu Sun Say training course
BEXEBHLE WEEIERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap e-training/forum/
BEME R g reading material/
webinar
REBLE W Esge Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David e-training/forum/

BEMHBEmae

reading material/
webinar
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and has occupied these
two positions since February 2003. In allowing the
two positions to be occupied by the same person, the
Company has considered the following:

(a) Both positions require in-depth knowledge
and considerable experience of the Group’s
business. Candidates with the suitable knowledge,
experience and leadership are difficult to find
both within and outside the Group. If either of the
positions is occupied by an unqualified person,
the Group’s performance could be gravely
compromised.

(b) The Company believes that the supervision of
the Board and its Independent Non-executive
Directors can provide an effective check and
balance mechanism and ensures that the interests
of the shareholders are adequately represented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent
Non-executive Directors comprise a good mix of
industrial, technology, financial and legal expertise
to advise the Board and the management team on
strategy formulation and other financial or regulatory
requirements. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing
Rules, each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has provided an annual confirmation of independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. However, every Director of the Company is now
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company under
Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of the Company. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Yu Sun Say
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, and one Executive Director,
namely Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel.

Pursuant to the CG Code, an advisory model has
been adopted by the Remuneration Committee under
which the Remuneration Committee shall perform an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining
the final authority to approve Executive Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, and making
recommendations on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
and consider the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management for recommendation
to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee
members at this meeting was as follows:

=
Attendance
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BRABL (£F) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 1/1
BEXERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HITESE Executive Director
BRF 1+ Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company’s remuneration policy is to establish
and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate employees
to run the Group successfully. The emoluments of
Directors are based on the anticipated time and effort
required from each Director, duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy
and market benchmark.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have the present intention to
establish a Nomination Committee in view that the Board
itself shall discharge all duties expected to be dealt with
by a Nomination Committee.

In addition, the Policy and Procedure for Nomination
of Directors have been set out in writing and adopted
by the Board to serve as a guideline in order to ensure
that there is a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors with
suitable experience and capabilities to maintain
and improve the competitiveness of the Company.
According to the Policy, where a need is identified
and arises for the appointment of a new Director to
the Board, a list of potential candidates should be
complied based on recommendations from existing
Board members, management team, other individuals
who know the candidates and, if it deems appropriate,
a professional search firm. The Board shall conduct an
initial evaluation of the potential candidates based on
the character, integrity, commitment, knowledge and
ability, accomplishment in his own field, professional or
personal reputation, particular experience or expertise
relevant to the current needs of the Board, and in case
of a new Independent Director candidate, whether
he would be considered as independent. Adequate
consideration should also be given to the diversity
perspectives under the Board Diversity Policy. The
Board shall then select and recommend one or more
candidates for interview. Lastly, the best available
candidate shall be recommended for consideration by
the Board as a whole.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
has reviewed the policies and practices on corporate
governance; and considered the eligibility of those
retiring Directors to be re-elected at the annual general
meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company.
Amongst the four Board meetings held during the year,
two were related to matters concerning nomination of
Directors.

The attendance of the Directors at these two Board
meetings was as follows:

HEE
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
T RREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(FEFTHAA) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 2/2
BHE Lt Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2/2
PRTEF LT Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 2/2
R 58 g A Mr. Wan Man Keung 2/2
AE K B % A& Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 2/2
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREFL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2/2
BHRAE LT Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
EXEBLE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
SR SR ST A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 2/2
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that a balanced Board
composition will contribute towards the performance
of the Board and success of the Company. In view of
this, a Board Diversity Policy has been adopted by the
Board. Such Policy should be read in conjunction with
the Policy and Procedure for Nomination of Directors
mentioned above.

The Board Diversity Policy provides that, in designing
the Board’'s composition, Board diversity shall be
considered from a number of aspects in supporting the
attainment of the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board will also
take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the prospective
candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that considerable diversity exists in
the existing Board of the Company in terms of its broad
experience, knowledge and personal background. The
Company shall continue to maintain its Board diversity
and, when there is any vacancy to fill, to promote the
specific objective of gender and age diversity without
compromising the quality of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

A Terms of Reference has been adopted for the purpose
of setting out the corporate governance duties to be
performed by the Board, including (but not limited to)
development of the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updating, review of the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board

has conducted an annual review of the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their
effectiveness through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, respectively.

The Board has established a comprehensive risk
management system based on identification,
analysis, evaluation and management of risks on an
ongoing basis. Each department under the Group is
required to own and manage its own risks. A number
of management committees reporting to the Risk
Management Committee have been established to
monitor different aspects of risk management for the
Group. Such work serves to provide an independent
checking of the effectiveness of the risk management
system of individual departments. The independent
Internal Compliance Control Department (“ICC”) of the
Company is delegated with the internal audit function
to conduct regular internal reviews and testings of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering financial, operational, compliance,
risk assessment and risk response implementation
controls. The respective management teams and
committees which comprise relevant executives of
the Group meet regularly to review the findings and
opinions of internal audits conducted by the ICC and
make relevant recommendations. The executives from
the management teams and committees also ensure
the control weaknesses are effectively communicated
to the relevant departments and monitor the follow-up
actions in response to their recommendations. The ICC
regularly reports its major findings and advice to the
Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
and assists them to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
respectively. The Risk Management Committee and the
Audit Committee report back to the Board for forming its
own view on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The Audit Committee annually reviews the adequacy of
resources and qualifications, experience and training of
the staff responsible for accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit functions to ensure that ongoing
control process are in place and functioning effectively.

The purpose of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational system in order to achieve the
Group’s objectives. For the year of 2020 under review,
the Board, through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, has reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, respectively
and considered them effective and adequate.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
(Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee), Dr.
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee
include the oversight of the Group’s overall risk
management framework; approval of risk policies
and tolerances and reviewing the breaches thereof;
review and assessment of the effectiveness of the
risk management systems; and advising the Board on
risk-related issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Risk
Management Committee held seven meetings to oversee
the risk management framework; assess materiality of
risks; monitor and update the Group’s risk policies;
discuss risk reports on key risks; and review the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(continued)

The attendance of the Risk Management Committee
members at the seven meetings was as follows:

HE=E
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
TEHZE(EE) Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada (Chairperson) 7/7
PRTEF LT Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 7/7
&K I 5 A= Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 6/7
M5E - Note:
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Relevant executives of the Group also attended the Risk Management
Committee meetings above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control systems; review of the Group’s financial
information; and review of the relationship with the
external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee met separately with the external auditors
twice and held two meetings to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group;
discuss the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including review of the 2019 final
results and 2020 interim results of the Group; review
the external auditor’s engagement letter; recommend
the re-appointment of the external auditor; and review
the accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their staffs.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
two meetings was as follows:

HER
Attendance
BIYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREBT(FE) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 2/2
HEAE T Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
ERELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
B ET & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HIFE B
ek B NI AZ BIRD 28 R Bk B 2 5TRD B 1S
FrzesEsmT :

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

HMEE (BT

Amount (HKS)

ZE R Audit services 2.750,000
IEAZ RS Non-audit services

— B & & A8 B AR 7% — tax and related services 653,500

3,403,500

EERRBOHMBRRZEE

BEREZELRZBMRETEEGEPERE
ZEETERAFRESTEIMR 2 [ B
BENHRE A -

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 87 to 94 of this Annual Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interest and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue.

In addition, shareholders are protected by the following
procedures as governed by the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation.

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”)

1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition
sent to the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a SGM to be called by the Board of Directors
for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of
the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of those
shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) (continued)

HMEREE  APWEHEREZTSR
BEPIREMEBECRREIERD
BHEARAKRRERIAS - AR - W2
KR - RIMBRERREMUAER - 75
HIreREBRARAKREINAE -

AEEECRRELBANAHRE EH
BRABRRNBERENA® LRHZZ
ZHR FAZZMEmE HB0T:

() HEBEBERARBZFHIRZESR

(IS%%{’EEIEHH?@E%E%ZZ@MX%

BETSN - TETUIER) - BIER
e 1){E% B BR LR

(2
TO)EEBEEH 2 EmMAA
54

(i) MEBZEBXAAA ZERBAZE
R RERD %ﬁ+mm®mﬁa
RALRT0)ETBEER 2 E
BN o

3.

[f the requisition is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition is invalid, the shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a
SGM will not be convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered
shareholders for consideration of the proposal
raised by the shareholder(s) concerned at a SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as
follows:

(i) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and
not less than ten (10) clear business days’
notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which
cannot be amended other than to a mere
clerical amendment to correct a patent error;
and

(ify  at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not
less than ten (10) clear business days’
notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director

1.

The Company holds an annual general meeting
("AGM”) every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a special general meeting
whenever necessary.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders, can submit a written request stating
the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM;
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by
the shareholder(s) concern and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons International
Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company, not less than
six (6) weeks before the AGM in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one (1) week before the general meeting
in the case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director (continued)

4.

If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board of Directors of
the Company (i) to include the resolution in
the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that
the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited
a sum of money reasonably determined by
the Board of Directors sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholder(s) concerned in
accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money
to meet the Company’s expenses for the said
purposes, the shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM; or the statement will not be
circulated for the general meeting.

S—EHEBRBRREREZEEREANIEF A separate document containing the procedures for
a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a director is also published on the website of the
Company.

Z XM RE B R AR A -
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the Board of Directors by shareholders

There are no provisions in the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 or in the Bye-laws of the Company that provide for
a procedure by which shareholder(s) may put forward
an enquiry to the Board of Directors of the Company.
A shareholder may, of course, at any time send their
enquiries in writing to the Board of Directors of the
Company at the following address or via the following
facsimile number or email address:

Address: 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company
Secretary or Chairman of the Board)

Fax: (852) 2797 8076

Email: enquiry@wih.com.hk

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company in the year of 2020. The current Bye-laws
of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R K E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 223,
which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020;

the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

BEREGTRERM
BEAPRAFREH &

T 55 +852 2289 8888 {EH: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers

22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key audit matters are those matters that,
professional
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

B AR E R
Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

in our
judgement, were of most significance in

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BMEFRFPHIOERET EEM M

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as

mr follows:

s TFEEEME e  Estimated provision for inventory

HMRENSHE RMOEANNESRHERETSH

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FERBEMGE AR T EEEARG SR BRI BN AR R -

Estimated provision for inventory

BIRMERE MR M T3 R M 4(a) -
Refer to Note 23 and Note 4(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

EEERN T _THFET A=+ ARANGEERER
314,000,0007T ° axlmﬁimﬂﬂﬁfﬁ i 1 75
FEERER—ERTHOEESZE-

The Group held inventory of HK$314 million as at 31
December 2020. It consistently applies a specific
provisioning methodology for slow moving inventory
based on products life cycle and inventory ageing.

ﬁfFﬁm‘iﬁA§D+ﬁt$Eﬂ1%%Z%%%f%%‘?rﬂﬁ%fﬁﬁ@fﬁﬁT\
BTl ARBRERERFHEARNFTENRZZER
BEIS IR E R AT R0 AT BE(E B BRI AT A58 R E R A
Rl FERBREEEANBE SRR

We focused on auditing this area because the estimation
of provision is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the inventory
provision is considered significant due to significant
judgements involved in identifying the inventories
associated with risk of obsolescence and slow moving
and evaluating the possible utilisation of the aged raw
materials by making reference to products life cycle.

Jruﬁ%rﬂéﬁ.#ﬂ&mIiﬁﬁiffuﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂ REZ (Bl EHM
WHN - FHURE IEFE’J@W@Z&%%FWE?KE’J% MEVGRNE ) HY 7K
F %157@&%5#&%!7@11

We obtained an understandmg of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of inventory provision
estimation process and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
subjectivity and complexity and changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

We exammed the basis of the methodology with respect
to inventory provisions and evaluated, amongst others, the
outcome of management’s estimations in prior years, analysis
and assessment made by management with respect to slow
moving and obsolete inventory to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process. We also evaluated
the assumptions and estimates applied by management
to determine the possible utilisation of aged raw materials
by making reference to the products life cycle without
contradictory evidence noted.

AMEFERAGGEMANG SRR ERE  TERA-F

MT%I%%*Jrf ANTFERKRREEEET Eﬁﬁ‘ﬁz@,ﬁﬁi%ﬁ
We evaluated and tested the accuracy of the ageing profile
of the inventory used in the calculation. We performed a
recalculation of the inventory provision using the ageing profile
of the inventory as at 31 December 2020 and the products life
cycle determined by management.

%P
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020 91



B Z AR S
Independent Auditor’s Report

_
pwc

BB MBS BERRAEN
B (&)

EiRE (BB R T ER) TR B2
BMEMT SRAM  R5TEEERE
Z - R

o HBIFNETH B A EREE ok 5E AR M B BUAR
AU BHMRGEERERFMARLL
AT MMITERT R A S LR R
URERAENEENETERE A
BMERAER - BRRFFAE ﬁ&%
ﬁ HiE - EEER - ERERM

BRAEES 2 £ - EIERE %ﬁlﬁ
ﬁﬁgﬁMEx&&@LmﬂMm
REEHHEBERMEBNEKNHERRE
a7y =L B

TR R RBE AN EBIES] - PARETE
EHETIRR Eﬁml#ﬁ Ex.
NEZEH B REERER -

s HEEFMRASTBRRNBEER
EH A AR REN SR -

92 IKEREBERAT 2020 F£5F

R K 18

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE2—ZFT —_FTFF+ - H=+—HIFFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2020

g 353 —T-NF
2020 2019
i BT T BB T T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$'000
W 2= Revenue 5 3,224,636 3,781,156
H A Y A Other income 6 21,326 9,826
Bk mREREREFSEZEE Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress (35,593) (830)
FTfE A 2 R OB @ Raw materials and consumables used (2,345,590) (2,741,393)
BREKMEFTER A Cost of stock of completed properties - (132,015)
EERHAMXZ Employee benefit expenses 7 (443,807) (456,772)
e Depreciation 8 (70,921) (69,204)
Hahgez Other operating expenses 8 (169,094) (182,790)
REMEAREBEE Change in fair value of
investment properties 16 (483,025) 28,375
Hih(F518) s — 8 Other (losses)/gains — net 9 (50,638) 9,502
DK MEGFEZRMEERE  Impairment losses of stock of
completed properties 24 (22,940) -
EWE ZER 2 REEE Reversal/(provision) of impairment
BE (B losses on trade receivables 8, 25 590 (698)
EiE (BiE),/FH Operating (loss)/profit (375,056) 245,157
BMEWA Finance income 11 18,358 20,588
BhE AR Finance costs 11 (55,650) (65,461)
FE(REE & N R FE, (518)  Share of profit/(loss) of an associate 18 949 (636)
& &% (E8) /FIE  Share of (losses)/profits
of joint ventures 19 (324,231) 104,921
MRATER AT (B5E) 7B (Loss)/profit before income tax (735,630) 304,569
PTSHF X Income tax expense 12 (26,048) (38,242)
BRETEH % (B8 A8 (Loss)/profit after income tax (761,678) 266,327
EATHEE AEMWL (Loss)/profit attributable to owners
(F518) /778 of the Company (761,674) 266,327
R ER Non-controlling interests (4) -
(761,678) 266,327
AQNTAEEBEAEEFESR (Loss)earnings per share
(F518) B attributable to owners of the
Company during the year
AR Basic 14 (HK$1.59) HK$0.56
e Diluted 14 (HK$1.59) HK$0.56

F102E2238 v M AZ & BB ®*E 2 The notes on pages 102 to 223 are an integral part of
WK ER D © these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE—F-—FF+ - H=+—HIFF/E For the year ended 31 December 2020

—E-SF ZE-NF
2020 2019
Bt & BT T BT T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FE (BB AE (Loss)/profit for the year (761,678) 266,327
Hr2HEWKA : Other comprehensive income:
DRt EH #4758 W2k Items that may be reclassified to
ZIHEEA consolidated income statement:
ReEREEH-—FEQR Cash flow hedge - fair value
BEEBE losses for the year (22,450) (2,360)
ReneYh - D®RIEL Cash flow hedge - deferred
P15 %5t income tax recognised 3,704 389
B E Z58 Currency translation differences:
e - Group 131,184 (35,098)
— g R A - Associates 208 (37)
HETSEH P HEEHEE Item that will not be reclassified
Wes K 2IHE - subsequently to consolidated
income statement:
EAnBEFAEMER Changes in fair value of financial
WA SREEAAEBE assets at fair value through other
- comprehensive income 21 507 113
FEHMEMEU A (EE) - Other comprehensive income/(loss)
els ] for the year,netoftax . 113,453 (36,993)
FELH(EE) WAHE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (648,525) 229,334
1k Attributable to:
iN/NEIEZ TSN Owners of the Company (648,521) 229,334
FEFE R M Non-controlling interests (4) -
FE2ME(EE) WWAHLE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (648,525) 229,334

F102E2238B 2 M RZFEMEMEX Z  The notes on pages 102 to 223 are an integral part of
AR E D o these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R —F—FF+—H=+—H Asat31 December 2020

—E-EHE —E—NF
2020 2019
B 2 BETT BET T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
Y - BB M Property, plant and equipment 15 249,956 220,157
REYE Investment properties 16 2,052,585 2,534,016
FREREE Right-of-use assets 17 110,176 125,796
5%%’2\ AW E Investments in associates 18 25,719 26,062
EEENER Interests in joint ventures 19 2,148,651 2,505,012
&’Afﬁf‘f@?ﬂ\ﬁﬁﬂi\@% Financial assets at fair value through
ARSI EE other comprehensive income 21 7,454 4,349
RIEFTISREE Deferred income tax assets 22 27,301 27,642
& M H b fE U BR X Deposits and other receivables 26 12,107 20,537
MEsmIEA Derivative financial instruments 29 = 76
ZRHRE Restricted cash 28 2,981 14,369
4,636,930 5,478,016
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 313,566 319,234
EEMERE Stock of completed properties 24 213,410 236,350
FEUE 5 IR Trade receivables 25 912,141 876,131
TENFRIE R R EMEUW  Prepayments, deposits and other
R receivables 26 89,366 74,858
BEARBEFAEME2EIR Financial assets at fair value through
AR E Fﬂﬁ? other comprehensive income 21 28 126
JFE g B 45 N B FRIE Amounts due from associates 27 = 14
”"HH—M&@FFr S Current income tax recoverable 1,372 1,727
PRI IR & Restricted cash 28 = 11,580
RERITIE Short-term bank deposits 28 738,916 641,886
RekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 680,202 543,314
T 2,949,001 2,705,220
BEE Total assets 7,585,931 8,183,236
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R-E-_FFF+—-H=+—H Asat31 December 2020

98

—E-EHF —E—NF
2020 2019
B 2 BETT BT
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’000
R EQUITY
BENRAQATEEAZH#ELZR Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
g A< Share capital 33 47,848 47,848
HAth Other reserves 34 598,884 481,572
REAEF Retained earnings 34
— B I B, — Proposed dividend 9,570 14,355
—H A — Others 3,677,472 4,462,445
4,333,774 5,006,220
FEERER Non-controlling interests 34 - 4
wfgm  Totalequity 4,333,774 5,006,224
=L LIABILITIES
EkRBERS Non-current liabilities
PTHEEBMITA Derivative financial instruments 29 26,592 4,217
FEEH B A K H ith BT BR K Accruals and other payables 31 11,290 15,844
HEaE Lease liabilities 17 27,946 30,583
RIEFTISHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 22 70,136 72,293
B® Borrowings 32 1,184,662 1,226,565
R 1,320,626 1,349,502
REEE Current liabilities
FERTE 5 IR Trade payables 30 668,278 673,649
FEET B A % H th E A BR 5K Accruals and other payables 31 192,077 187,838
AHaE Contract liabilities 5 164,190 147,465
HEaE Lease liabilities 17 5,147 19,756
EEEHAas Current income tax liabilities 47,831 89,181
B Borrowings 32 854,008 709,621
T 1,931,531 1,827,510
#e@®  Total liabilites 3,252,157 3,177,012
HERKREE Total equity and liabilities 7,585,931 8,183,236

HEMBBRREN T _—F=-A=1THE
Wi MIEERE

EESMAERDETE -
5E

A
FIERITHAEE

F1025 2238 27 W &F BZ4r
I
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The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

TEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
BB EX 2 The notes on pages 102 to 223 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2—ZFT —_FTFF+ - H=+—HIFFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2020

KRRHEE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BkAx  ROEE ARG FERER @t
Non-
Share Share Other  controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total

(M5%33)  (PaE34)  (Besk34)  (FIEE34)

(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 34)

BB BEFT BT BETL BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“NF-A— As at 1 January 2019 47,848 153,025 4,619,312 4 4,820,189
THWE/% I mEESR ‘J 165  Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16
A% - - (235) - (235)
"MEHN-_FT—-NF—H—H Restated as at 1 January 2019 47,848 153,025 4,619,077 4 4819,954
ZEKA Comprehensive income
FEAE ] Profitforthe year o T_....T_.%esr - 266327
Htt2EEA Other comprehensive income
‘A ﬁ{ﬁﬁuﬂ\ﬁ’rﬁiﬁﬂﬁl)\ Changes in fair value of financial
MEBEEARBERZY assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 113 - 113
ERnEEE Currency translation differences - - (35,135) - (35,135)
BeREHHE-FEAAMEA  Cash flow hedge - fair value losses
BB for the year - - (2,360) - (2,360)
Renedh-ERAEL Cash flow hedge - deferred
PRiEH income tax recognised - - 389 - 389
AtZEEA®E  Total other comprehensiveloss - - (36993) - (36993)
EEMARE __ Jotlcomprehensiveincome - - 29334 - 229334
BEBAZRS Transactions with owners
ENARBHEAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the
Company - - (43,064) - (43,064)
BRBAZZPEE _ Totaltansactionswithowners - - (43084) - (43,064
RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H Asat 31 December 2019 47,848 153,025 4,805,347 4 5,006,224
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—F-_FF1+=H=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

KAREETAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
RA RORE - HttRE FERES st
Non-
Share Share Other controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total

(M=E33)  (PfaE34)  (MHaE34)  (KiEs4)
(Note 33)  (Note 34)  (Note 34)  (Note 34)
BETT B%¥Tr B¥Tr EB¥®Tx E¥TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000

R-2-8F-A-H As at 1 January 2020 47,848 153,025 4,805,347 4 5,006,224
ZEHBA Comprehensive income
FERE Lossfortheyear - = (161,674) (4)  (761,678)
Hth2EBA Other comprehensive income
BAREEFAELZEAWRAR Changes in fair value of financial
tREENABEED assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 507 - 507
ERhEES Currency translation differences - - 131,392 - 131,392
Bengdh-58 Cash flow hedge - fair value losses
AREBEEER for the year - - (22,450) - (22,450)
BeneHH -8B Cash flow hedge - deferred
ERmES income tax recognised - - 3,704 - 3,704
AtZEWARE ___ Total other comprehensive income | T.To M358 - 118,153
2EERAM  Totalcomprehensiveloss | N ..:2-1) I (4)___ (848,525)
BEBAZRS Transactions with owners
ENARRHEEAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the
Company - - (23,925) - (23,925)
BRBEAZRS®E ___ Total transactions with owners TT. (28925 - (23925)
RZE-ZH+-A=1+—H As at 31 December 2020 47,848 153,025 4,132,901 - 4,333,774

F102E223B v W iT Azt 587k 2 The notes on pages 102 to 223 are an integral part of
HERKE D o these consolidated financial statements.
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HEHERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE2—ZFT —_FTFF+ - H=+—HIFFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2020

—ECZEE ZE-NF
2020 2019
Bt & BT T BT T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’000
ﬁ@%iﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁmus Cash flows from operating activities

EIEELEMR e FRE Net cash generated from operations  35(a) 211,520 562,608
Eﬁ%?’%ﬂ%ﬁ Hong Kong profits tax paid (50,385) (14)
BB IN K Overseas tax paid (24,224) (39,389)
BEFET R Hong Kong profits tax refund 7,564 -
BN FR K Overseas tax refund 406 1,968
B E Interest paid (55,650) (65,461)

BETHELENEESFE Net cash generated from
operating activities 89,231 459,712
RETHFBHEERE Cash flows from investing activities
BAVE BEREE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (73,884) (30,886)
HEWE  WEREE Proceeds from disposal of property,

Fr18 3008 plant and equipment 35(b) 787 2,056
BEEA 7FEHKHXH§,%'\ Dividend received from an associate 1,500 1,500
BEAnEBEFAEMEZE Additional investment in financial

WA EREEFEIMNGE assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (2,500) -
JE U Bt i N R SRIEDRL Decrease/(increase) in amounts

(3 m) due from associates 14 (3)
R HRSR 1T 15 338 40 Increase in short-term bank deposits (89,039) (146,180)
ZmRHBLRLD Decrease/(increase) in restricted

(g hn) cash 22,968 (11,297)
HESEARBELEZ Proceeds from disposal of

EMBEE 2 FTERIE non-current assets classified as

held for sale - 88,383

HEDEEN Repayment from joint ventures 32,130 10,710

2 F B Interest received 18,358 20,588

&ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬁ)ﬂ HWR$FE Net cash used in investing activities (89,666) (65,129)
MEETHAERERE Cash flows from financing activities
ErEBIRIBITERE M, Increase/(decrease) in trust receipt

OR ) — %5 bank loans - net 87,170 (69,644)
MERITER New bank loans 1,675,693 1,701,500
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (1,660,379) (1,856,853)
T BEERK Payment of lease payments (18,134) (14,222)
EAIRE Dividends paid (23,925) (43,064)

mﬂﬁlﬁibﬁi/(ﬁﬁﬂi) ¢ Net cash generated from/(used in)
L BRew®m ] financing activites 60425 (282,283)
ReRReEEYZ Net increase in cash and cash
10 E R equivalents 59,990 112,300

FHAzEERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 543,314 447,737
BEBHmEZERE Currency translation differences 76,898 (16,723)
FRZESRRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents

at end of the year 28 680,202 543,314

F1022223B 2 Wi Az A BB EX 2  The notes on pages 102 to 223 are an integral part of
HE D o these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronics products as well as
property holding.

The Company is an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and 17/F., C-Bons International
Center, No.108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the presentation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

BITERBUBEREEARE (a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
& 2 7 R B Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance
REBZZEHFEUBI@E These consolidated financial statements
EERBRAMAEERBE SN ® of the Group have been prepared in
FLHEAN(E BB @EE accordance with all applicable Hong
Al kBB RBHEGI(TEH Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Nafgpl]) (F622F) 2 # (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements
BHREMRR - of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("HKCQ”) Cap. 622.
REFTEBE BV BHE LR The preparation of financial statements in
2 BHRRERGERAETH conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
BREhEt TEXKEERE of certain critical accounting estimates. It
RERBAEBE ST IE 2B also requires management to exercise its
BARITEAE - P REEH judgement in the process of applying the
BB EE - YRS Group’s accounting policies. The areas
MBEBEREEATZENRR involving a higher degree of judgement or
RAHETERMIFE4 #5585 - complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
FE 52 R A< 1E 1 (b) Historical cost convention

LERAWBRRCREE
SERAEFCERBEMHRAR
EBEFAEMLEZARANSE
BMEE BHARBEFAR
mZeRMEERERBEE
EITEEMTE) RIREYME
(BRAAEBEIEK) ETTE
IE)#R%e -
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These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, as modified by revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties, which are carried
at fair value.
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2 FEGTBERBE(E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 REEE(K) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) "EEECHKANHTREEBET (c) New and amended standards and
9 2E Al 2 BE = AE 2R conceptual framework adopted by the
Group
BE-E_TF-H—-—BHRE Amendments to existing standards
ZHBEREER2IRAB LR and conceptual framework effective in
ZAEETh RS HE SR financial year beginning 1 January 2020
b3 LHES: Standards Subject of amendment
ERMBRE EBIER Amendments to Definition of a Business
ERIFE3F HKFRS 3
R (Revised)
(E153T)
BERGHERN BEIESR Amendments to Definition of Material
FIRREE HKAS 1 and
ERR e HKAS 8
HZ BT
“E-\FEN BEICHBREL Conceptual Revised Conceptual
BREcHe HoER Framework for Framework for Financial
ER Financial Reporting
Reporting 2018
EREHENE FEREEYE Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
305 - AN FIER HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 Reform - Phase 1
BREES and HKFRS 9
THRRE R
BREEAE
O 2B FTIR
ERMBHREE H019BHRASE Amendments to COVID-19-related Rent
BlE16% s HezHEEER HKFRS 16 Concessions

There are no amendments to standards
and conceptual framework that are
effective for the first time for this period
that could be expected to have a material
impact on the Group.



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESTBEREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 REEE(EK) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) S5 H 1 R 5% A BO 7 R AR 48
RTHERI R 28

(d) New and amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group

WiATER - R A R
ETRARREDE
f5 R -—Z-BF—F—H
B £ = B TR [ 1 o A 2 L
RER DR

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation that have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2020
and have not been early adopted

BUT RS
Z®&iBsz
FEHBEN
Effective for
annual periods

28l CHES:] beginning on or
Standards Subject of amendment after
BN B RS EA B - M R FOME R T —F

EB B ERIE395% - —A—H

BBV BHREERE49E
BBV EERETR R
BBV BHREEAFE165 2
1B ET hR

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 16

FEBGEITB B 21857k

Amendments to Annual
Improvements Project
HEBEGFTERFE 1698 2 EFThR

Amendments to HKAS 16
BB EREI7TH ZIEFT R

Amendments to HKAS 37
BB EHREEREIR 2 IEET IR

Amendments to HKFRS 3
GETi551 FE55 (K&1835])

Revised Accounting Guideline 5
FBM I MEERFEATHR

HKFRS 17

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

T \FER_ZT_TFABZFENE
Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle

Property, Plant and Equipment
EEGH

Onerous Contracts
2EBSIESR

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

HRZEREHNAHEHE

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combination

3=k

Insurance Contracts
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2 FESTHBEME(H)

21 REEE(E)

(d) S5 H 1 R 5% A BO 7 R AR 48

ATV ERI K 2 i ()
el A RAEEAZ

AR UAKRZEE B
R —_E-_FEFE—-F—H
Mg B FEREEAREKRA
REREHEM(E)

ZE 2
Standards

LHES:

Subject of amendment

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) New and amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group (continued)

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation that have
been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2020 and have not been early adopted
(continued)

BUTHRES
&Iz
FEMBEN
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or
after

BAGEEAFE1R ZIBFTR
Amendments to HKAS 1

EEREESR(ZT_FF)

MHmER2IBENER

Presentation of Financial Statements on Classification
of Liabilities

—E_=F
—HA—H
1 January 2023

MBI R : ERAH S ERBRER AT EGRINEH —E-=F
ERXND8E —HA—H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a

1 January 2023

Repayment on Demand Clause

BB B HRELERZE109: R
BB G RERE28Y 2 EETR

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

ARABEF L EERA Lt
Fra] 2RI - ZEANME AT hRA I
RRZMGRE - ARE=E
ERNABERRERTEN
R ER T AT R R Z &
FTRRIA Ko pe #E o
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

N

+ ==

REEREBERNR A B ELEIHZEELESTE FIE

To be determined

The Directors of the Company are in
the process of assessing the financial
impact of the adoption of the above new
standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation. The Directors
of the Company will adopt the new
standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation when they become
effective.
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2 FESTHBEME(H)

2.2 B8

REMERRBEARRLEME
WBARBZ_ZE_ZF+_A4
=t+—BIiLZ#BE®RE -

(a) MEATE

B AREMAEASEEH
BERENENER(BREERE
HER) EAKERLZH
% B 8 1 A JE A] & Bl Ry [
Bk FH A DR E -
WHRENEBIERLERE
BT R B I T B R
AREBAESZER - B
NAEZEHEEEEAEE
ZHBEZHEERE AR - B
DAL 2 A
IEER B ARR

AEBEXRBAHEAKES
AEARR -

AAMZRS  EBREE
AR 52 kBRI
¥ REREENEY
BB BEMTEE
RS EAECAE - B
AR BHBEEREEE
BEHEE  RIREAEE
R 2 B -

Fi B AR H A RS T HY
FIERERD N EEEE
WARK ERBERETB
RRARBILZT o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December
2020.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.
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2 FESTHBEME(H)

2.2 & (#\)
(b) EE& AN

B ERNAEFMEAREEHH
EERTENBEZTH X
HREEZEH#E 2 A BEAR
EEFEE20% £50% %R
oM ERNTMIRE NS
SEEAR R TI() ¥
IR ANFERR o

(c) 6&=H

RIFFBYHRELERE 1
MAaEL RAERHZ
KRESRBERAREEHE
2hE - -BHENEERER
REHEZANBEANREEML
MmAEEERBZETE
B ARBECHBEAER
hetd TEEERAE
bR -AELERERIER
BEIEARR S TIZERAR
eI KRIER
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity
method, after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHBEME(H)

2.2 &#& (&) 2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d) HEZEFHE (d) Equity accounting

REE#ED A WETR
AR BREAE
UREa Bk EARNEE
EEKRBENORKRETE
@ MR EA 2 U ARER
ALEREWKRETWEAM
PEHEBEZEE 2R HEK
BanrkaEgbRXBRER

FRR & R EE R o

EARKBREAEERER AR
BRENEBERBFNIBEHE
RZERNER(BREEM
H i AR R B R U R)
AIRNEE T EemRE T
B BRIFHEELEEERR
REMBERIEL K

AEBEAEBERANAE
CERXHZAERRHBA
SERZRFEEBNEDSS
HoBRIERZRERBECEERE
ERECERE BRRER
BERTEHE ERNEARFR
RERT IR a AR ZWIRE
FZEFHER BERERE
BFTERNE — B -

BEm ARKRE ZRHEETS
RIEMTEE 2.7 ATt 2 BROSR 1T
ERI,

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in
consolidated income statement, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates
and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of losses
in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.7.
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2.2 ZRE(E\)
(e) HEEEREE

REE R R RN R
5 (X T EH K GIHE) R
FEASEESEEG AN
5 AREZREHEHE
P et B SR E B s PR (B
2 ) B 58 B DA S BR 182 5 10 Y
BRI HE D o IR
o ERERITAE Tk
B R(E 2 B HE A Z 5N
RRRHEA ANEEEDR T
B R o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(e) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.
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POLICIES (continued)

2.2 &#& (&) 2.2 Consolidation (continued)
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(e) Changes in ownership interests
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(continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in consolidated income
statement. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated income statement or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated income statement where
appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHBEME(H)

2.3 DEHE 2.3 Segment reporting

REDHBRAEERERRE
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Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
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provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”). The Group’s senior executive
management, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments, is considered as the
CODM that makes strategic decisions.

s E 2.4

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) THEEREHEX (a) Functional and presentation currency
AEBEBERMBHREMT
BHEHOUERERKREER
FIEFERBREMAEY
([Thee ¥ DEHE - 2658
MR ARRR 2N 8E kA
EEzEREBEEIE-

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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2 FESTBEREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.4 HMNEBRE(E)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) RBREER (b) Transactions and balances
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Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
including those relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other (losses)/gains - net’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security, and
other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in consolidated income
statement, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such
as financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in
consolidated income statement as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in
other comprehensive income.
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2 FESTBEREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 HNEBRE (&)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
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The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that report;

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.
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POLICIES (continued)

25 - - BERRE 2.5 Property, plant and equipment

116

BFITEREBELMAE M
BEME  BERREHRESLK
AT E S BR o JES2 AR AN B R UL
BEEEERBIENFAX - KA
BREESTEENERZY
X WENMEENAINEEE
RERATREY PELENEIMN
Wz

127 B2 3% 1R B AR B &Y R SR A7 A
S AR RERAKREEBRER S
EREBRARZBRT » ER&K
AFFABERAEXERSE
VEE(WMER) BEHD 2K
EERRILER - FTAEEMEE
RRBRARESE 2 B BEER
fRE W R AR -

ME- -BEMRKBIIFERAT
MEr A EMFH - AERIERK
AoBEFIHEEFE

BF 152 40F
WE - s RRE 5Z74F
EMEREE 5E74HE
E 4

BEMNGEELRANEAFHER
BEHmEMRIEL R LHE (W
SR e

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

Buildings comprise mainly factories and
offices. All property, plant and equipment is
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15 to 40 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 51to 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 510 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.
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2 FESTBEREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

25 Y% BEREE (E) 2.5 Property, plant and equipment
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(continued)

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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POLICIES (continued)

26 BREWME

2.6 Investment properties
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Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held
for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the companies in the Group.

Investment properties comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held
under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.

Investment properties are measured initially
at its cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers at least annually.
Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the
external valuers use alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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26 REWHEX (&)

2.6 Investment properties (continued)
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Subsequent expenditure is charged to
the asset’'s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes
owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16.
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2.7 Impairment of investments in

subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets

()

(i)
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Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through
consolidated income statement), and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
consolidated income statement or other
comprehensive income. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in consolidated income
statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in consolidated income statement and
presented in other (losses)/gains - net,
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses.
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28 RERHEMEMEE (&) 2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii) = (&) (iii) Measurement (continued)
BmT A Equity instruments
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The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to consolidated income
statement following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in
consolidated income statement as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in other (losses)/gains -
net in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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2.8 Investments and other financial assets
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(continued)
(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Impairment losses
are presented in consolidated income
statement. For trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.
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210 fTE T EAREHES 2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The accounting for subsequent changes in
fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives:

o hedges of a particular risk associated with
the cash flows of recognised assets and
liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the
relationship between hedging instruments and
hedge items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions have been and will continue to
be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes are
disclosed in Note 29. Movements in the
hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity
are shown in Note 34. The full fair value
of a hedging derivative is classified as
a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than twelve months; it is classified as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity
of the hedged item is less than twelve months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current
asset or liability.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

210 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

(i)

Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves
in equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in consolidated income
statement within ‘other (losses)/gains -
net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to consolidated income
statement in the periods when the
hedged item affects consolidated income
statement. The gain or loss relating
to the effective portion of interest rate
swaps hedging variable rate borrowings
is recognised in consolidated income
statement within ‘finance costs’.

When a hedging instrument expires or
is sold or terminated, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in consolidated income
statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity is immediately reclassified to
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

210 Derivatives and hedging activities

211

(continued)

(ii) The derivative instruments do not
qualify for hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other (losses)/gains -
net’.

Inventories and stock of completed
properties

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Stocks of completed properties are stated at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the
completed properties.
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2.12 Trade and other receivables
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Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 25 for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.1(b)(2) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

213 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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215 BEHE S REMEBMAER 2.15 Trade and other payables

ENBIZERRE—REFBRE
R ERBE R GRS ME
SATHYEYE - BN E S R EAD
FEASH BR SR 0 ST B B — F 3 A
A E—REL ARG - A
ARRER)  HEO2BARBE
B BRDBERIERBAE-

e B 5 Ko B At &S BR KA 25 BA
N BEEER ERANABERF
ORI BEHN AT & o

216 B

EXNSRAREBELMGBESE
MR ZRATER - ERE RIS
ERATIER - TSR IE (IR S
RN ) B2 (B (B {8 #) (AT = RE A A
ERFNEEZRERHEAELRE
W RFER o

REVERRMEMXNNER -
B AR SPT A B & 1R F] A A B
BRARERNRFHA - EZIE
AT ZEREERREIRASE
RIBFEX W o DR BEME R X
B DS P A B E | IR I
ZERBIERRE MRS 2 BN
HIBERE - WEREEBEH
R A SE -

FRIEAREEA BRI EINRE
HARECEERERD T @
A BRAEFHOBERRBEE -

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.
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217 Borrowing cost
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General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.
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218 MK EREN 2.18 Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
as a financial liability at the time the guarantee
is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with
the expected credit loss model under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined as the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a
third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of subsidiaries or associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions
and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the
Company.
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The income tax expense or credit for the
period is the tax payable on the current
period’'s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
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Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in general
defined contribution pension schemes.
A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date. Employee
entittements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable
when employment is terminated by the
Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present
value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus
plans due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are
recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

2.22 Revenue recognition
(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the control
of the products is transferred to the
customers at a point in time, being
products are delivered to the customers,
the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.

(b) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a

time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.
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(c¢) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair values where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are initially
included in liabilities as deferred government
grants and when such property, plant and
equipment are built or purchased, the
received government grants are recognised
in consolidated income statement on a
systematic basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to the lease
and non-lease components based on their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a
lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group,
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease,
eg term, country, currency and security.
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Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in consolidated income statement.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of twelve months or less.
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AEBEAHBEANKEHER Lease income from operating leases where the
MEWAZEREZNEERRNE Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
AW ERER ERKEHE income statement on a straight-line basis over
EENVRBEEZEKAT AEBE the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
ENERAEE - WRES R ARE obtaining an operating lease are added to
REEWAWEREERR R the carrying amount of the underlying asset
o ERHEEEREEETA and recognised as expense over the lease
FREMBRRE - term on the same basis as lease income. The

respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
based on their nature.

225 R E 2K 2.25 Dividend distribution
MR AR 9 K 8 IR SRR B Dividend distribution to the Company’s
EARNFIRRIES (RAEEA shareholders is recognised as a liability in
i 7€ ) #b A # BRFE R RS AN &2 B 2 AR the Group’s and the Company’s financial
RAMPTBREERRAE - statements in the period in which the dividends

are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally
and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures. The Group’s foreign
currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally
denominated in Chinese renminbi
(“RMB”), United States dollars
(“US$") and Japanese yen (“JPY”).
These currencies are not the
functional currencies of the Group
entities to which these balances
related. Foreign exchange risk
mainly arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments
denominated in RMB, US$ and JPY.

The Group mitigates this risk by
maintaining HK$, US$, JPY and RMB
bank accounts which are used by
the Group to pay for the transactions
denominated in these currencies.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)  HMER ()

REE B AR
ETHRE EREEFE
AARBE - AR
HAHNE 2 Sk RER
o B8 A 3t BB 2 A 2 S
BE B il AR B AR AR ©

R—ZZE_ZTF+_A
=+—HB '  WAR%
HETERE/FE%
—E—NF 5%)M
FTE B el & E XK
BAE XEEKRH
‘BB ER DM
734 937,000T( —F
—NF: BB %&MNE
BRI
46,231,0007L ) * £ &
REBREAEITETED
JE W I FE A B 5 BR SR A
kEERREEEMH
HNE R Z= 518 o

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group has certain investments
in Mainland China, whose net
assets are denominated in RMB.
The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations on the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2019: 5%) against US$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
loss for the year would have been
HK$34,937,000 (2019 post-tax profit:
HK$46,231,000) lower/higher (2019:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of US$-denominated trade
receivables and payables and cash
and cash equivalents.
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(a)

P%ERE

B(&)

3.1 B¥EBEE (&)

™5 EkR ()

(i)

HNE R (48)

R—ZZE_ZTF+_A
=+—H MBEEKX
AR¥EEE,/F{ES%
—E—NF  5%)MmFT
BEHMAZRERERRET
B AFEHRTBEER
1mi/@ﬂm%%7om
T (ZE—NF : iR
R E SR 18 0 A
81,0007T) * FERAH
BIUARETEHREK
N IERE 5 BRFA KR
e RIS FEWRIINE
BB W o

R—ZZE_ZTF+_A
=+ —H: HBEEH
HERE 7 E10%
(ZE—NF 1 10%) M
%ﬁﬁ@Tmlﬁﬁ
BAE  RNFEERIE
%E%%M/m ks
421,0007t( = — N4 :
%ﬁ&ﬂ%%ﬁ9/ﬁ
hn7E# 301,0007T)
TREHBE uEl?ﬁ
WIENE 5 R KRB
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2019: 5%) against RMB with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
loss for the year would have been
HK$7,000 (2019 post-tax profit:
HK$81,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of
RMB-denominated trade receivables
and payables and cash and cash
equivalents.

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 10%
(2019: 10%) against JPY with all
other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$421,000 (2019
post-tax profit: HK$301,000) higher/
lower (2019: lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of
JPY-denominated trade payables and
cash and cash equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) REREFER

AEBRHEFBREER
BENXZE M@ Y
F & E R o REREF
R 5 M R g
MFERNENEE R
TEEAZBRETREZ
Ry NEEZEEE
EXZRRFBBITFR -
REBE 2 F B RERK
1 5 & Al 35 A KK E
FE YKEAKEER
HRMEMNERR -

AEBEERMNEERE
BEHEHRSREMNXA
e —RME A&E
s iREHm R BAE
o Wi RRERNEE
BRI EE M R AR
REEEZ EEME -

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing assets
and liabilities. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that changes in market
interest rates will impact cash flows
arising from variable rate financial
instruments. The Group’s interest
bearing assets mainly include
deposits at bank. The Group’s
floating rate borrowings will be
affected by fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates and will expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Group manages its cash flow
interest rate risk by using interest
rate swaps. Generally, the Group
raises long-term borrowings at
floating rates and swaps them into
fixed rates that are lower than those
available if the Group borrowed at
fixed rates directly.
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(i BEREFERER

RZE_ZEEF+ A
:+—H W R 1T E
ﬁTFM/M m

REFDE - $¢E%
1&g BB A E MR
A & #17,023,000 7T
(ZE2E—NF: BEE
ﬂ%%ﬁy/%M%m
16,167, 00075 )
BREE /TAZﬂ
,%\Eaﬂsiisbu//szQ\ o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iiy Cash flow interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2020, if interest
rate on bank borrowings had been
1% higher/lower with all variables
held constant, post-tax loss (2019:
post-tax profit) for the year would
have been HK$17,023,000 (2019:
HK$16,167,000) higher/lower (2019:
lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers such as trade
receivables, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
loans to joint ventures, deposits and
other receivables. The credit risk on cash
and bank deposits is limited because
the Group mainly places the deposits
in banks with high credit rating and
management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these banks.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

[\ f B IR

REREERR A%
BEEERBEBERE
HHFHF2RAEL
IR - NEEE BT
K BRIZEEGRNIE
HEEMIEFPHASR
REELE  MASK
B g E BTGRP
SEMRR - AEBEBT
TNERB HEHARSE
BB MN-T_TF
+-—A=+—H B8R
H(ZE—NF:HA)
EPEAEEFRER
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(ZZE—NF :70%) -
WASEREEERR
EFHEBER - BEELK
ERZERFPHY KA
MEBTES  REB
BZEREPHNEERR
+ O ERGN o

(1)

Risk management

To manage credit risk, the Group has
considered the underlying security
and the long-established business
relationship with the counterparty.
The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products on
credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history
and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require
collaterals from trade debtors. As at
31 December 2020, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that
the top five (2019: five) customers
account for 80% (2019: 70%) of
the Group’s total year end trade
receivable balance. Management
considers that the credit risk in
respect of these customers is minimal
after considering the financial
position and past experience with
these customers.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Risk management (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise,
restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, loans
to joint ventures, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, amount due from
associates are subject the expected
credit loss model.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS
9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables are
assessed individually for provision
for impairment allowance. Trade
receivables have been assessed
based on credit rating of the
customers, the repayment and
default histories of different
customers and on-going business
relationship with the relevant
customers. The loss rates
are further adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has
identified the Gross Domestic
Product index of the countries
where the customers located,
Consumer Price Index to be
the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjust the historical
loss rate based on expected
changes in these factors.
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3 MBERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 BIBEAREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) EERB (&) (b) Credit risk (continued)

150

(2) SREERME(E) (2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)
(i) [EREZER (&) (i)  Trade receivables (continued)

RZE-ZTF+—R4
=+—H BE
¥ 15 78 HA E5 48 X
20.2% (ZZE—H

Loss allowance in respect of the
trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$1,974,000
(2019: HK$2,564,000) based on

F:0.3%) " H an average expected loss rate
EEWE S EX of approximately 0.2% (2019:
MEEBREELN S 0.3%) as at 31 December 2020.
75 #1,974,0007C

(ZE—NF B8

2,564,0007T) °

EEAAEIEET Trade receivables are
I [0 & 5 e W I8 written off when there is no

B A E AT
i o EA A IR TR

reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there

A EHEREeE is no reasonable expectation
(K eiE) B A of recovery includes, amongst
iy ey NC S E T e other, the failure of a debtor to

EEitE -

EE SN2
BEBZ A
(B51R) ./ FIBPOR
AR - ik
Bl 2 5 47 2 3
S INCRSEE
HA

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

engage in a repayment plan
within the Group.

Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented
as net impairment losses
within operating (loss)/profit.
Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off
are credited against the same
line item.
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M EREEE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 B¥EBEE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) EERB (&) (b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) SREERME(E) (2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i) BREZH (&)

(i)

Trade receivables (continued)

RZEZTF+= The movement of loss allowance
A=+—HEZ= for trade receivables as at
T-NF+=ZAH 31 December 2020 and 31
:—1— A ERE December 2019 is as follows:
AR Y B B e
m@JﬁDT
—E-ZF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
R—A— A8 Opening loss allowance at 1 January
BIREE (2,564) (1,866)
BB BB E (#N) Reversal of /(increase in) loss allowance 590 (698)
R+=ZB=+—HHK Closing loss allowance at 31 December
HREBEREE (1,974) (2,564)

fE W E 5 R FOR
BEEBEERLD
& ¥ 590,0007T
(ZE—NF: E
WE 5K E
EEBEOBEK
698,0007T) & &
e zmERA -

Reversal of impairment losses on
trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$590,000, (2019:
provision of impairment losses
on trade receivables amounted
to approximately HK$698,000)
is included in the consolidated
income statement.
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3 MBERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 BIBEAREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) EERB (&) (b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) SREERME(E) (2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i) WABEEK A SR

(i) Other financial assets at

152
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amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised
cost include deposits and other
receivables and amount due
from associates. Management
considers that the credit risk
of these balances has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position.
The impairment provision is
determined based on the twelve
month expected credit losses
which was immaterial.

While cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits and
restricted cash are also subject
to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

REESRER (c) Liquidity risk

EENRPDESRARERER
RRBERRENBEBAF
ERAEERTEESHEE
H-BEZEERBBEER
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AEBZHRSEMERE
nBETHFE BFEETE
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B EFHHREHRENERK
HE -

Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available credit
facilities. The Directors aim to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements, its
compliance with lending covenants and
its relationship with its bankers to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of
the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Balances due
within twelve months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the

EINE o HARITE XA F lenders were to invoke their unconditional
HHS *ﬁﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁmi&ﬁ,ﬁﬂ rights to call the loans with immediate
e effect. The maturity analysis for other bank
borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
HHA AN
Maturity Analysis
15/ 1228 2255 54 L am
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&=e Consolidated
R_E-NF+-A=1+—8 At 31 December 2019
EREAER Trade payables 673,649 - - - 673,649
A ERARAM Accruals and other payables
JERTER 187,838 5,282 10,562 - 203,682
MEBE Lease liabilities 21,610 5,744 9,884 28,299 65,537
ERKEBRITER Trust receipt bank loan 239,535 - - - 239,535
HpRIER Other bank borrowings 525,922 740,500 553,309 - 1,819,731
1,648,554 751,526 573,755 28,299 3,002,134
R-ZB-BF+-A=t-H At 31 December 2020
& ‘ﬁf’f%ﬁﬁm Trade payables 668,278 = = = 668,278
EAEARAM Accruals and other payables
AN 192,077 11,290 - - 203,367
HEAR Lease liabilities 6,952 5,035 9,436 25,046 46,469
ERRERITER Trust receipt bank loan 325,780 - = = 325,780
HpRTER Other bank borrowings 550,271 450,072 762,580 - 1,762,923
1,743,358 466,397 772,016 25,046 3,006,817
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

32 EXEKRERE 3.2
REEHELEE B EZRBERERN
EEEEELYE BEBREIR

B ]I A E D E R F
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REFAHEELRERE  ~&H
AREEREIN TRRNORE S
B RMBRRE@MER  HTHRK
ML EBENERER

HEMRAE - AEEAFE
ERELREREZEEANE
& R FE B AR AR S
AE-FRAEREERNEESR
BEREMRTFALRE MRS
HFEWMTE -

# o

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debit.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of net
gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings and lease
liabilities less short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

—E-FF —E-NF

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

BER Total borrowings 2,038,670 1,936,186

HEAE Lease liabilities 33,093 50,339
e 2,071,763 1,986,525

FRERITIE Short-term bank deposits 738,916 641,886

BeMREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 680,202 543,314
S Ll 1,185,200

FEE Net debt 652,645 801,325

At Total equity 4,333,774 5,006,224

FEEHAESLER Net debt to total equity ratio 15% 16%

AEBR-_ZE_ZTF+A
—t+—HZFEEBRALER
15% (ZZF—NF 1 16%) - FE
EBELERRBLTIHRERRT
ERERSEBESZEEWIE N
FrEL -

The Group’s net gearing ratio was 15% (2019:
16%) as at 31 December 2020. The decrease
in net gearing ratio was due to increase in
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The fair value of the following financial assets

and liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts:

Trade and other receivables
e Restricted cash

e  Short-term bank deposits

° Cash and cash equivalents
e Trade and other payables

° Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3 HM¥EREE(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 X ABEEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
TREINAEBR_-_Z—-NF The following table presents the Group’s
T+ A=+t—HEAABETE assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
ZEERAE- value at 31 December 2019.

FAR Fo FE3 Rt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets

AR {EME Financial assets at
FFAEAM  fair value through
MU AR  other comprehensive

TEEE income 156 - 4,319 4,475
TE S Derivative financial
TA instruments - 76 - 76
=R Liabilities
PTE S Derivative financial
TH instruments - 4,217 - 4,217
TEREINAXEBR -_ZE-_FF The following table presents the Group’s
+ - A=+—HEAABETE assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
ZEENABE- value at 31 December 2020.
E18) £/ F3M i
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets

R AREME Financial assets at
SFAEAM  fair value through
2HEW AR  other comprehensive

THEE  income 42 - 7,440 7,482
=N Liabilities
PTES R Derivative financial

TH instruments - 26,592 - 26,592
TR BN BB L FEIFZE There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
e o and 3 during the year.
FERN - HERTGEELMER - There were no other changes in valuation

techniques during the year.
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3 BXRARERE(E)

3.3 AREEME (&)
(a) F1REMTE

EERMBEEENSHIA
ZRAABERERERAD
MIBMEF R o X REA]
FERTHAR S - &5
B TEEE-KRE
AR 7% ok BE B MBS - %
THRERMER LEHEA
FRAETZMERS A
ZGRAERME - A&
EHENEREENTISR
BARENEREB %EIA
SFAEIR -

(b) #2fk&mMTH

WIERBRTIZEENES B
TEBIEIMTET ) H
NABEDNERBEERDGE
E o EHMERDEELM
ARG ZABREMSHRE
WEAI R D IR B R4 T
Eat- M ITAAREEZE
MAFERS2EI B
AIRx T AT AR24

FoRTEeM T ABRIERX
EH -EArEBEDNEAMG
BEREROETE ZEHERDT
REFRAURBZAEBRM
LEE - WRARER KB
FRBTIHAT -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments
comprise interest rate swaps. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation technigues maximise the use
of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates.
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KRR ERE (&)

3.3 AREEME (&)

(c)

F3EMIAE

i —IAKZIBERZ2HI IFE
ERABEMSEE AT
HEt AZE3RH -

TREWNEBE_ZT_ZTF
+ZRA=+t—HItFEFIRK
TAZE%-

TREJNEIRITHAZ#E):

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(¢) Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is

not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in Level 3.

The following table presents the changes

in Level 3 instruments for the year ended

31 December 2020.

The following table presents the changes
in Level 3 instruments:

—2-%F —ENF

2020 2019

BT BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FHHE R Opening balance 4,319 4,162
& Addition 2,500 -

BAREEFARMEE

Changes in fair value of financial

WA 2 FEE assets at fair value through other
AREEE comprehensive income 621 157
F R aE ek Closing balance 7,440 4,319
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ERGEHEEH R A

fEar KA AFENE - XERNBEL
BEHEMRAE  BRKEERBRAEE
BARREHNSIEER -

AREBBLARRIE L Gt R RER - EEM
SHHITERER RS HEARERS
RTA - N —WRFEREEARR -
EREERBEREEAFLERNS
B bt RRERHEN T -

(a) FEZMEEE

AEBERBHFEANERREE
MR BEEMRE R R

B MAEHRBERB(CBTE
BRAl BRI AlEsEEN

AE A BR o 385! OB 1B B 78 8
A R fEE o MEHERERE
BEt BB =B BT EFER
mELGFSEEHENTEM
IE

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.

(a) Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs
of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.
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4 EAXRGEHEE R A E (&)

(b) EUWER T RE

(c)

TMEECEBBEBHREBEEN
B\ M FEEIR R R 2 RRETE °
REBMNEZFERRSEER
B E@AZER  REFPA
SEBEESL RITTRAERE
| E BIR 2 R R AH A1 HIET
EREIERRMTAZEAZRE
ZAHABENRHIES -

FEBMEEZRE

fial A8 (17T = 1 BB 0 B L BUR 3F
TR EE 2 REE R B EAI
Bl - BIZEVE R E AR & - AT 4L [
TRNOEKBEREEFEXMS
EMERE - % FiEHEAE

P B R Ak 5T e

EREAMHEERTRME L
HEEFE: (\BREEEAETEER
EREEBEITEEZKRE 2
45 (i) ] U B B (B E B
BEREEMMTAAEBERIE
ERAS AR KRS REFRE (B
BEaERE)) RGESZEERE
ZHRAEAE: R(iiWREBESRE
FEAREAEENTERSE 8
REAFEAEENEIRZER

TmETEA

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of receivables

(c)

The loss allowance for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020 161



162

e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 EBEAREFHEERHE (&)

(c)

(d)

FERMEEZRE(F)

M ERE T ERECRRBEE (8
ﬁfﬁi/méfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁZTﬁfﬁT
FIBREREBR) - KGFERER
ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬂ‘]ﬁ@%@ SN2 WN
SEFBAN REEHELE -

REWMRZANEE

REWMEZEENDREFEHNE
SBeRMNIMERGERER]E
T-ARAAEBYFHAERM

1B A 42 & ’BKA%J“EEA*H?%ﬁi}%
—H%Z—Jéfttfiﬁﬁ“

AEHERKANBRRNAEE
8 BIF R e B IRE Y BN
ROEEEAFLEAHENE
KRR -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is
performed in accordance with the “Valuation
Standards on Valuation of Properties”
published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed
semi-annually by qualified valuers by
considering comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving
the valuation could have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position.



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 EAXRGEHEE R A E (&)

(e) M¥ - BERRBZERFR

()

AEEEREETEME BE
KR H EETE A F R EARET
Efx - ZAst HRERENEE
KWz ME BB RJREER
ERFERABELREL - L
AERPRERGEFTZIFR &
BEESEMTEX L HaEEK
MOREZAS L E 2 BB K
FEBEMEE BREHEFHK
SRMAFERHRAR - FH®
AAREEAITESFHMLRES
AmEHRARKMEZTERXA
PR -

PR RIEEFr &8

RE BN % E RDA R R AR
B -NREESMAERERERR
AIEHEARAE - AEXBBIE
TEEZRRXHAFEBEEZRER
ZHRBHIE R TR NEBER
IR Ah ET 2 A ZR B A R S B R T B
REFAVBEZEEZRE -
BHEEZRRARBERRAY Y
ABERERR  ZEZRETERE
A BB 2 s B KR T
IR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e) Useful lives of property, plant and

()

equipment

The Group’s management determines
the estimated useful lives, and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where
useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives. It will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
various jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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4 B ARG EE R HE (F) 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f) FIBBRELZERSH (&) (f) Income taxes and deferred income tax

164

e ERSIEE R REHIR AR
FERBF A Al MERFE R
MIAE B E 2K - RIFERY &
ETHRREZEZECHBEEN
HIAEE - BB R EAER
THACEMRNEE R M L
BRZELEREHREEERIE
EMBEHABEAESERS SR
R2zH=E(FED) BE - B R
BRARREEFAER  ZEBH
FEMGEPHEEERIEER
B N PTG S 2 FERR o

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

(continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in
the period in which such estimates have been
changed.
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2 EER

AEBZERTREEEHREATE
SERRE([XTBL2ERKE]) - K
SERF D SMELEEEP

BFRERK ([EMS]) — REMSEE &
HRERDHEETER °

MERE-MEER HELEE -

FELBARETCHERAERRE
FERNHRE UFBHRREEDESE
R FEEERRERBEDIBEE ZF
ENHEENHRIE -ZA=EESR
EARMBEAMAWA - H (E518) %
ﬁé—f%%ﬁ BB KA — R R MG
NAVFE (B8 2 & 8D AE -
EABRPERRSERZ - AFEL
BARBRECEMEIZELGS M
BMERFAF TN —NEE ©

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s senior executive management is
considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM”). The Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions:

Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”) -
manufacture and distribution of electronic products
for EMS customers.

Property Holding — development, sale and lease of
properties.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The CODM assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement
basis includes profit or loss of the operating
segments before other income, other (losses)/
gains - net, finance costs — net and share of profit/
(loss) of an associate but excludes corporate and
unallocated expenses. Other information provided
to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.
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5 2HER(F)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

MEREE
EMSZB 9 i W
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BET T BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE-Z-ZF%+=H For the year ended
=E+—HLEEE 31 December 2020
M External revenue
BEFP AW Revenue from contracts with
customers
Ui 55 7 2R B Timing of revenue recognition
—ER R, — At a point of time 3,157,160 - 3,157,160
E b Uy 75 2ROR Revenue from other sources
—MHelA — Rental income - 67,476 67,476
3,157,160 67,476 3,224,636
DEBEE Segment results 132,811 (780,147) (647,336)
e Depreciation 68,511 41 68,552
EIE A EDEEE Share of losses of joint ventures — (324,231) (324,231)
WEWMENREEES Change in fair value of
investment properties - (483,025) (483,025)
NG Capital expenditure 73,884 - 73,884
MERAR
EMSEFFT &P e
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BT T BT T BT I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE_Z—HAE+=-A Forthe year ended
—t—HLFE 31 December 2019
oM = External revenue
BEP &K= Revenue from contracts with
customers
U 55 7 2R B Timing of revenue recognition
—IERX KR — At a point of time 3,559,922 149,699 3,709,621
E b Uy 75 2ROR Revenue from other sources
— KA — Rental income - 71,535 71,535
3,559,922 221,234 3,781,156
DEBEE Segment results 159,197 197,918 357,115
e Depreciation 66,767 42 66,809
B & & EFE Share of profits of joint ventures - 104,921 104,921
BEWMENREEES Change in fair value of
investment properties - 28,375 28,375
N Capital expenditure 30,886 - 30,886

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

MERE
EMSEH g s B
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
R=ZB-ZF+=A As at 31 December 2020
=+-8
DEVEE Segment assets 3,005,529 2,280,684 5,286,213
BETENER Interests in joint ventures = 2,148,651 2,148,651
A2{IEBEELHZE  Total reportable segment
assets 3,005,529 4,429,335 7,434,864
MERR
EMSHFT BE P #za
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BT T BT T BEF T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE—-NF+=A As at 31 December 2019
=+—H
HEEE Segment assets 2,708,691 2,787,668 5,496,359
HEPENER Interests in joint ventures - 2,505,012 2,505,012
A2mHEIEEMTE  Total reportable segment assets 2,708,691 5,292,680 8,001,371

DHEETEBREME  BEMEE
REME  EREEE REhXME
m RRFIRE 75 EXAUER
g RREZERR  BNAFKE - G2k
Hp AR - REIRTHER LIRS &
ReEEY BEITEEBRERATANR
B eI A BonEEFAR
fEERANEREE  BELMEHRE
B FEUE S A RIFRIE - B BRI UE P
BREGERRDEEE -

Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties,
right-of-use assets, interests in joint ventures,
restricted cash, inventories, stock of completed
properties, trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents, but
exclude investments in associates, derivative
financial instruments, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, deferred
income tax assets, amounts due from associates,
current income tax recoverable and corporate and
unallocated assets.
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5 2HER(F)

A 2Ry EBEE RS AT (EE)
SHBZHERT -

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

A reconciliation of reportable segment results
o (loss)/profit before income tax is provided as
follows:

—2-%F —ENF

2020 2019

BT T BT

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

AME2®mMDIWEE Reportable segment results (647,336) 357,115
Hup A Other income 21,326 9,826
Hh (F18) W2k —F5  Other (losses)/gains - net (50,638) 9,502
AR — F 58 Finance costs - net (37,292) (44,873)
FEAEES 2 AR, (EI8) Share of profit/(loss) of an associate 949 (636)
TERRSERXZ Corporate and unallocated expenses (22,639) (26,365)
BRETISHLAT (B518) FI@  (Loss)/profit before income tax (735,630) 304,569

AERNAEELRBEE CHRWT

Reportable segment assets are reconciled to total
assets as follows:

—E_EHF —E-NF

2020 2019

BT T BT

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

EFRSBEE Reportable segment assets 7,434,864 8,001,371

Bt N RRRE Investments in associates 25,719 26,062
BEAREEFAEMEE  Financial assets at fair value through other

WA EREE comprehensive income 7,482 4,475

mE2MIE Derivative financial instruments = 76

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ% Deferred income tax assets 27,301 27,642

JiE U Bt 8 N R 3R Amounts due from associates = 14

R E e TR Current income tax recoverable 1,372 1,727

CENKIEEE Corporate and unallocated assets 89,193 121,869
FAEMERRERANBEE Total assets per consolidated statement

of financial position 7,585,931 8,183,236

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH
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DEPER (&) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HihERIER 2HBRIT - Reconciliations of other material items are as
follows:

—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T AT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
e Depreciation

— A 2®/H DB - Reportable segment total 68,552 66,809
— R ARRE — Corporate headquarters 2,369 2,395
70,921 69,204

EARAX Capital expenditure
— A EWmH B - Reportable segment total 73,884 30,886
— R AERRE — Corporate headquarters - -
73,884 30,886

RRRNBREZLM - A TRAREEZ
wERmHE D 2 Wam o (REAEER
ZHEORTE)

The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. Analysis of
the Group’s revenue by geographical market, which
is determined by the destination of the invoices
billed, is as follows:

—E_EHF —E-NF

2020 2019

BETT BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

=M North America 603,380 885,028
DM (NBRIEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 1,707,703 1,491,294
B Europe 451,696 627,781
&5 Hong Kong 461,857 777,053
3,224,636 3,781,156

HE_T-_TF+-_H=+—HLF
€ - #)7%8 #1,278,805,0007T M & ¥
344,633,0007T 2 Wz 79 Bl 2R B M A SN
HEF #HEZFT-—NF+-_A=1+—H
IFFE - #7%¥1,356,499,0007T *
7 420,082,000t & 78 #378,548,000
TZWEDRIKE = RINBEE - 25
EPEMEAEEKRZE Z10%HA £ o 3%
Z W 25 BEMSERPT FE 1k Uk %% o

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenues
of approximately HK$1,278,805,000 and
HK344,633,000 were derived from the top two
external customers respectively. For the year ended
31 December 2019, revenues of approximately
HK$1,356,499,000, HK$420,082,000 and
HK$378,548,000 were derived from the top three
external customers respectively. These customers
individually account for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue. These revenues are attributable to the
EMS division.
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5

7 EER (&)

AT RAEBIRETISE D
BEENM

Z 3

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by
geographical market is as follows:

—E-EE —E—NF

2020 2019

BETT BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

1k =M North America 14 6
DM (NERIEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 311,930 314,735
"H B Europe 20 30
éé;‘% Hong Kong 4,297,665 5,135,603
4,609,629 5,450,374

INBEEBREYE  BEREZE -
WEWE - FRBEEE  BEQRINIKR
B AP ENER  BRANEBEEA
H2EKANEREE TEE/T
B & R EAM R AR FRA K X PR IR
CETBRELEMGREE -

bm

\|
/l

Non-current assets comprise property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use
assets, investments in associates, interests in joint
ventures, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, derivative financial
instruments, deposits and other receivables and
restricted cash. They exclude deferred income tax
assets.

AEBEERATINREFAELERR The Group has recognised the following liabilities
BE: related to contracts with customers:

—ECZEE —T—AF
2020 2019
BT T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
AH# B E —-EMSEEP Contract liabilities — EMS division 164,190 147,465
AHBEE-—WEF B Contract liabilities — Property Holding division - -
164,190 147,465

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

B & &y %Rl The following table shows how much of the revenue
Wz e recognised relates to carried-forward contract

liabilities that were satisfied in a prior year:

—2-%F —ENF
2020 2019
BT T ST T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
EMSEEPS EMS division 147,465 118,089
LEST o= Property Holding division - 11,904
147,465 129,993

Hib g A 6 OTHER INCOME
—E-®F —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
B8HS e Bh Government grant 19,226 7,688
HERBERE I Sales of scrap and spare parts 1,399 2,126
Hth Others 701 12
21,326 9,826

EERABEX (BERESHE) 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

—E-EF —ZE-NEF
2020 2019
BT T R
HK$’ 000 HK$'000

TE -Ho 2K Wages, salaries, allowances and
H b B B AR other termination benefits 416,999 415,156

RIKE LA Pension costs

—REMHFKEE - defined contribution schemes 26,808 41,616
443,807 456,772
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FE)EEFIJE%JEZ (BREESEMHE)
&

REBABEMEGEREBRILES
MRAEEFE ([RELTE]) - A
CREICEEHEASEEESIHARE -
NESHTABZITEABTE - REQAES
e AEBRHEEETA S ARG E
ELHR - @B AREREEBRA (EX
REBEFMERTESFTENEH) 25% o
REBREE ZHAR LRI AT ABE
1,5007T (ZF—NF : & A %1,500
TC) o R EEHAEBE TES -

REE ARJME (THE ) 5B
RAZEERTELRBEBFRYL 2
BARBAGTEKE -

B RAP B A R A P B K 1 B SR
RET B - B A RZARFMN —F
BRIt EHR - FEREEBAA
BERNEE ZERE - ZFAE THOR
WEV RS RIER D IRB HFOKF -

SIAERRERBRIE 2 BK AL
75 #26,808,0007T (ZE — L& : B
41,616,0007T) FE AN E B gt A B F 2
BV AN T/

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Fund Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Fund
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the Fund Scheme, each of the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month (2019: HK$1,500 per month).
The contributions are fully and immediately vested
for the employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Vietnam are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC and Vietham governments.

The relevant subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the state retirement schemes in the
PRC and Vietnam. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the schemes. The PRC and Vietnam governments
are responsible for the pension liability to the
retired staff. No forfeited contributions under these
schemes can be used to reduce the existing level
of contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$26,808,000 (2019:
HK$41,616,000) represents contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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BREFSBLAT (B518) /FIHE 8 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
BRATSELRT (B518) /FIBLHTT - (Loss)/profit before income tax is analysed as
follows:

—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T AT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
ME BMELZBEZITE  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 50,191 52,191
FREEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 20,730 17,013
e Depreciation 70,921 69,204
% 2 6 B & Auditor’s remuneration 3,156 3,281
RITFEE Bank charges 2,246 2,490
EFERE Building management fees 13,959 13,846
L8 mKkBEHEm Chemicals and consumables 27,101 26,678
itk Commission fees 18 4,762
BRE Cleaning expenses 3,397 3,854
REE Entertainment expenses 640 1,170
BT 78 & 2= £l Government rent and rates 3,113 3,224
X R B hn & Government surcharges 8,443 11,370
R B Insurance charges 2,427 2,095
EELREEER Legal and professional fees 5,317 9,175
HERY Motor vehicle expenses 4,646 4,835
PAENBERXZ Office and factories expenses 4,669 4,062
WEHHE & EME  Operating lease rental in respect of
short-term leases 1,386 217
RIS~ FII & Recruitment, training and other
HMETITREMAX staff welfares expenses 12,647 5,779
#iERRE Repairs and maintenances 13,580 17,442
REE Security expenses 3,120 3,332
EIRE Travelling expenses 1,625 3,873
BB Transportation 29,231 30,922
~ARX Utility expenses 20,322 22,465
EAh Others 8,051 7,918
HAbag & Other operating expenses 169,094 182,790
JEWE SR ZMEEE  (Reversal)/provision of impairment
(BB #f _ lossesontradereceivables | (5%0) ¥ 698 _
L] Total 239,425 252,692
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9 Hit(F#E) Wi F8 9 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET
—EZEF —T-NF
2020 2019
BT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
SRIA(EE) W (Losses)/gains on financial instruments
— 5 - net
—REIH — Unrealised — 20
—BER — Realised (1) (18)
HEWE WMENFZEEHZ  Gains on disposals of property, plant and 198 288
& equipment
N (E18) ks — %%  Exchange (losses)/gains - net (50,993) 9,212
HEE R E=E Gains on lease modification 167 -
Hith Others 9) -
(50,638) 9,502
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10 EEREREEEZ2HE 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEM S (a) Directors’ emoluments
REBEZ-_ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year
IETFEZEEMEEHINWOT : ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
HEERDT
FENELF
BHER HEXES bRNEH
AR it BEENY  RHABESEEL
ne B AN EERY LREE R EY#e BEERHE ELES
Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of Director's
Remuneration other services in
paid or connection with the
Employer's receivable in management of the
Estimated contribution to respect of  affairs of the Company
Discretionary Housing money value of a retirement accepting office o ts subsidiary Total
Fees Salaries bonus allowance other benefits benefit scheme as Director undertaking emoluments
BRI BRI ARt Lo ARt AT BRI ARt AT
HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEH(HE)  Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note) 10 4,355 1,755 - - - - - 6,180
TEg Wong Yin Man, Ada 0 2,09 1,555 - - 18 - - 3,93
Fiz Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 0 176 180 - - - - - 1,026
BRE Wan Man Keung 0 2,465 1,555 - - - - - 4,090
fAIE Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 10 1,757 400 - - - - - 2201
I5H Li Ka Cheung, Fric 160 - - - - - - - 160
BEE Yu Sun Say 160 - - - - - - - 160
X% Alfred Donald Yap 160 - - - - - - - 160
Fol Cheung Chi Chiu, David 160 - - - - - - - 160
4% Total 990 11,645 5,445 - - 18 - - 16,098
REE-_Z—hF+-_A=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year
ITFEZEEMEEHINWOT : ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
HERALT
JEHERA
el HEREE bE0ZH
v ez BEZENT REEGEEREY
ne i Bl REEH fEitReE EHiH EyHe EfgERHE £ne
Emoluments paid

or receivable in

respect of Director’s

other services in

Remuneration  connection with the
paidor  management of the

Employer's receivable in affairs of the
Estimated confribution to respect of Company or
Discretionary Housing money value of aretirement accepting office its subsidiary Total
 Fees Salaries . bonus allowance ofher benefits benefit scheme as Director undertaking emoluments
A%t A%t et BT BT ST A%t A%t AETTL
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AR (M) Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note) 10 433 4163 - - - - - 8571
4 Wong Yin Man, Ada 10 2,283 2,463 - - 18 - - 483
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 70 776 400 - - - - - 1,246
Wan Man Keung 0 2,293 1,963 - - - - - 4,326
Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 0 1,751 500 - - 6 - - 2321
; Li Ka Cheung, Eric 160 - - - - - - - 160
BRE YuSun Say 160 - - - - - - - 160
9% ] Alfred Donald Yap 160 - - - - - - - 160
i Cheung Chi Chiv, David 160 - - - - - - - 160
&% Total 990 11,441 9489 - - 4 - - 21,944
B 5 Note:
TAREERALAITHRAE » W #H Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Chief Executive Officer of the
- S o e . ) .
AT IR 8 B 5 51 L R Company, no separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration

of the CEO has been made.
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10 EERSRE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BEZHME (&)

EEME (&)

BE_ZT_ZTER_F-NF
TZA=1t—RHLEFE #HEE
EMEXRBERETAME

EERNKEFN

TEIFAESFERBIREE
—ECEER-FT-AF+A
=t+—HIEFEARAXN -

ESRUERBER

VEIFRESKIEREEFNRES
—TECEFRER-_ZE—-NF+ A
=t—HIEFEAZf -

REREZERBEEOE=F1FH
K KB

RBEE-_Z-_FTFR-_FT-AF
TZA=1Tt—RLFEAR AR
A ERRTEEERBAFE=T
AT ERAAE -

MEE IZSFESEHNE
A.ﬁg&nxwﬁgﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁg

RENER EERAMEMLR
ZHEFR
REBE_ZT-_TER-_T-AF

TZA=Z+ - BLEFEFERK
FRAEAEH YTEAESE X
REEEEVNAEAERRZE
EENHEETIREREMEN
BEFMELEMK S

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in any of the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

Directors’ termination benefits

No Directors’ termination benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available Directors’
services during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
were made available in favour of Directors,
body corporates controlled by and connected
entities with such Directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 EEREGREEE2ME (&)

(f)

(9)

EENRE  ZEREIHH
EAER

REBEZZT_TFR-_FT-NF
+ZA=+—BLFEFHERK
FRNEMEHE AQRWLHEET L
BYAEEEBNARAESEHE
EEETERREERERD
BEERH  THEEH -

TEEESME AL

FA-AEERRERSHE A
T BREEE(ZE-NF: 1R)
BF  WEZMeEHN EXETZ
DI e =R (ZF—NF: —FR)
AL ZBISFSIE T

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(f)

(9)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
four (2019: four) Directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2019: one) individual are as follows:

—2-%F —ENF
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
Fe kEAMET Salaries and other benefits 1,323 1,291
Fian Bonus 102 53
BARE KA — R EMIKETE] Pension costs — defined contribution
schemes 18 -
1,443 1,344
AE
Number of individual
—E-FF —T-NF
2020 2019
B & &5 & Emolument band
7 #1,000,0017T — & #1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1

FA-AEEREINMES TE
= EARSIREFMAKREEL
A& B 2 52 3 1F /5 B B
g -

No emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office during the year.
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10 EERSHREEEZME (&) 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(h) SREEE (TERES ML (h) Senior management’s (excluding
& = Directors) emoluments by band
SREEE(TBERES) 2He The emoluments of senior management
NFUATEE : (excluding Directors) fell within the following

bands:
AE

Number of individuals
—E-®F —T-N4F
2020 2019

I < &6 [Z] Emolument bands
7% 1,000,0017T — &% 1,500,000 HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 3 3
11 BERAR—FEE 11 FINANCE COSTS - NET

—E2o%H —TNF
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000

& WA Finance income

L TBOEFZNEMA - Interest income on bank deposits [ 18,358 20,588

B & AR AR Finance costs

—-HEBEBECFERAX - Interest expenses on lease liabilities (2,335) (1,181)
—RITERZFERAZ — Interest expenses on bank borrowings (53,315) (64,280)
BABEAKAE  Totalfinancecosts . ... (55650)  _ (65461)
BB R AN — F Finance costs — net (37,292) (44,873)
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12 FIBFHEX

BMNERERELBHBRENEL G
.:+J§%%R%'Jf‘ﬁ?ﬂﬂ$16.5% (ZZ2—N%F:

16.5%) sHHe B -

REBHREARNMWMEB QA EH
MR BECERBSHR (IDEMSB
Bl BMEAEGBFTFNBEZ25%

(ZZE— N FE :25%) @ XD A
ZEEWBRARES R (M)
ERAR ([ZEmaMI) BRI -
EgmNTen ¥ T

15% (ZF—NLF :15% ) E &
TtEMSHE BEZ2_F - —F
+=-—A=+—8-

AR NSRS HSRE

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong
Kong.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
at a rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the estimated
profits, except for Welco Technology (Suzhou)
Limited (*“WTSZ”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. WTSZ is entitled to the preferential CIT
rate of 15% (2019: 15%) under the New and High
Technology Enterprises status till 31 December
2021.

The amount of income tax charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:

—2-%F —ENF

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

EHMEE Current income tax

—BENEW - Hong Kong profits tax 6,882 36,761
—BINEL IR — Overseas taxation 25,406 37,677
—BAFEHERE — Over-provision in prior years (9,638) (3,225)
EEFTFR (BFE22) Deferred income tax (Note 22) 3,398 (32,971)
26,048 38,242
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12 B x (&) 12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
BEEAEERTR (BE) FBZ#H The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income
IEEE‘JE"%%AT%*”“%U/F?L%E’ﬂJD tax differs from the theoretical amount that
BFHIBEFAELNERSBOT would arise using the weighted average tax rate

applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
“EZEF —ZT-hF
2020 2019
BT T BEF T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BTSSR AT (B18)  FIE  (Loss)/profit before income tax (735,630) 304,569
REANSWHEZERN  Tax calculated at the domestic
MEAE2BIIE tax rates applicable to profits
in the respective places (120,985) 49,055
EE2®REE QR RAEDE Tax effects of associate and joint ventures’

BREEEE MG E results reported, net of tax 53,342 (17,207)
TR F R 2 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 88,434 17,170
BARTWA Income not subject to tax (3,062) (8,126)
W EBERELSHEER Tax losses of which no deferred

MIEE S income tax asset was recognised 17,957 575
BTFERERE Over-provision in prior years (9,638) (3,225)
e fif = Income tax expense 26,048 38,242

HEAMEFEHRERBI6% (ZF— 1

F:16%) °

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F
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Hﬁ /%\

ZEZRERZZTE-NFENHRKRE
9 Bl A #) 7B 23,925,0007T (B iR B #
0.057T) M B #43,064,0007T (& I &
0.0970) ° BRA QG EEKRRERF KX
e rERE R EE T -_TF+_-A
T+ —HEFEXREREASR
7 #0.027T © & H 4 #9,570,000
TC o WEMBRRITERBREXENZ
RHEARRE B -

13 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2020 and 2019 were
approximately HK$23,925,000 (HK$0.05 per
share) and HK$43,064,000 (HK$0.09 per share)
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020 of HK$0.02 per share,
amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$9,570,000, will be proposed at the upcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. These
financial statements do not reflect this final dividend

payable.
—2-%H —T-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BT HRE — G AE®0.027T Interim dividend paid — HK$0.02 9,570 16,747
—ZE—NF : B¥0.0357T) (2019: HK$0.035) per share
R RER B — S B #0.027C Proposed final dividend — HK$0.02 9,570 14,355
(ZZ—h4& : B¥0.037T) (2019: HK$0.03) per share
19,140 31,102
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14 S8R (FE) BF 14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) X (a) Basic
BRER (BEB) BADERAR Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated
AR AR (BE) /R A by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to
FRNERTEBRZNETHH owners of the Company by the weighted
FHE average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

—2-%H —T-NF
2020 2019
NN BIHEAE AFE(S (E518) / (Loss)/profit attributable to owners
B BT T of the Company (HK$’000) (761,674) 266,327
BT T @R 2 MiEFIE Weighted average number of
(&) ordinary shares in issue (in thousands) 478,484 478,484
BREXR (B, &F Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK$)
(B%T) (1.59) 0.56
(b) #58 (b) Diluted
MEIMETEERERESTR No diluted earnings per share is presented
M EEMEFEAMBEELT 2 for both years because there is no dilutive
e EimaR o potential ordinary shares outstanding

throughout both years.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE B2 \ \
THRBF  ERIE ik BRLREE RE At
Plant,
machinery Furniture
Land and  Construction and and Motor
buildings in progress  equipment fixtures vehicles __Total
AETr  BETT A%t BETn AT BBTx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-AF-A—-HB  At1January 2019
RAE Cost 192,972 - 837975 145399 13427 1,189,773
ZHTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (59,777) - (686,585)  (124,725) (10,069)  (881,156)
REFE Net book amount 133,195 - 151,390 20,674 3,358 308,617
RZZ-NE—A—-B  At1January 2019
HREFE Opening net book amount 133,195 - 151,390 20,674 3,358 308,617
RE Additions 119 10,212 20,521 34 - 30,886
HE ) Disposals - - (1768) - - (1768)
ENNBEPRELE Reclassification 1o
. right-of-use assets (61,814) - - - - (61,814)
% Depreciation (4,743) - (42,051) (4,352) (1,045) (52,191)
EEHERE Currency translation
differences (751) (29) (2,778) (8) (7) (3,573)
BRERFE Closing net book amount 66,006 10,183 125,314 16,348 2,306 220,157
m:§;n¢+:ﬂ At 31 December 2019
-Tt—-f
RAE Cost 115,686 10,183 827,620 145380 13391 1,112,260
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (49,680) - (702,306) (129,032 (11,085)  (892,103)
RERE Net book amount 66,006 10,183 125,314 16,348 2,306 220,157
BE B3 ‘ .
THREF HRBIE k#fk HFAREE RE fit
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Furniture Motor
Buildings in prongres_s equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
EBTR BRI BTn BRI BRI BRI
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
R-B_25-5-A At 1 January 2020
HNEAFE Opening net book amount 66,006 10,183 125,314 16,348 2,306 220,157
wE Additions - 20,206 52,679 999 - 73,884
HE Disposals - - (589) - - (589)
(B1H) /8A Transfer (from)/to 30,389 (30,389) = = = =
e X Depreciation (5,490) - (39,799) (4,404) (498) (50,191)
ERREEE Currency translation differences (635) - 7,305 25 - I
HAREEFE Closing net book amount 90,270 - 144,910 12,968 1,808 249,956
R-B-RE+-A=F-H At 31 December 2020
RAE Cost 148,604 - 891,223 146,454 13511 1,199,792
ZHARERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (58,334) - (746,313) (133,486) (11,703) (949,836)
BEEE Net book amount 90,270 - 144,910 12,968 1,808 249,956

R-_E_ZEF+-_H=+—H

F B TR

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank borrowings

TEFAKREEAY S 20,911,000
T (ZZ— 15 : ##21,499,0007T)
ZIEFERT (H5E32)

are secured on buildings with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$20,911,000 (2019:
HK$21,499,000) (Note 32).
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16 REYE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—ZEC-EF —T-hEF
2020 2019
B¥TT BT
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
n—H—H At 1 January 2,534,016 2,506,097
NREE(EE) = Fair value (losses)/gains (483,025) 28,375
EHHmE Currency translation differences 1,594 (456)
R+=Z—A=+—8H At 31 December 2,052,585 2,534,016

AREFEREDMEFEARIIREWER
HIZ10E250F 2R A3FE -

;‘5@:==—==¢+—ﬂ—+—a -

ETROTERBEEHBEARNBE
1,579,000,0007t (ZZE — NF : B
2,501,100,0007T) 2 1% & ¥ % 1E 4K 3§
(Ff3E32) °

EXFRREMEEERR

The Group’s interest in investment properties at
their net book values are on medium-term leases of
10 to 50 years.

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank borrowings
are secured on investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,579,000,000 (2019: HK$2,501,100,000) (Note
32).

Value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

—EEE —E-NF

2020 2019

BETT BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

R ES Properties in Hong Kong 2,027,900 2,510,700
BEABEBEINDE Properties outside Hong Kong 24,685 23,316
2,052,585 2,534,016
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16 REWE (&)

AW (G EBR

BEMEBFFIREBZLEAHE -
REWENR _ZT-_TF+_-_A=+—H
M—ZE-—NF+-—A=+—HB2ZHE
MEZAEMTESRETEARA
RET HABRBAEMBEE RS
B IRBEBABMBMELEAFE135%
ZERBEMEZ RAABAEAFTEERR
HIE R o

REBE 2 BB B8 E H
TREMEGLE ERNEEEERE
HoREAEE2HRER > EEERZ
BEERHERREMERELFED

T4 A N g
n‘—_r A N °

EEEEZBEGNSREBGEEN®
FoNMBIRAABEIE - ER
A — B ZEBIR2RE - AR
BArBEZSH2EH-

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The investment properties are valued semi-annually
on the direct comparison approach. The valuations
of the investment properties at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019 were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals
Limited, who is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. The fair value measurement
information for these investment properties in
accordance with HKFRS 13 is given below.

The Group’s finance team performs the valuations
of investment properties required for financial
reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management and
the team at least once bi-annually, in line with the
Group’s reporting dates.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at
each reporting date valuation discussions between
the management and the team. As part of this
discussion, the team presents a report that explains
the reasons for the fair value movements.
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16 REWE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
rEEZHEBRE (&) Valuation processes of the Group
(continued)
AREEE
Fair value measurements
HEEE
RERT S EXHAM BEREE
ZHRE BEFRSSH BERZY
(%14%) (%24R) (%E34%)
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ERAAEBETE Recurring fair value
measurements
R=-ZZ-ZFF+=H  As at 31 December 2020
=+—H - - 2,052,585
RZZE—-hF+=A As at 31 December 2019
=+—H - - 2,534,016
FA - BAR - BoRREIF 2B & There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and
i o Level 3 during the year.
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16 REWE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
FEHERELBEEZEFAELAAE Fair value measurements using significant
B (534%) unobservable inputs (Level 3)

REYE
Investment properties
B8 &BE @t
Hong Outside
Kong Hong Kong Total
BT T BT T BETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RZZE-ZFFE—HF—H At1January 2020 2,510,700 23,316 2,534,016
/a AREEEE Fair value losses (482,800) (225) (483,025)
EMBREEZR Currency translation
differences - 1,594 1,594
R-ZZE-2F At 31 December 2020
+—BA=+—H 2,027,900 24,685 2,052,585
FRAABEEEMEE  Total unrealised losses
(MELRFFEE for the year included in
FFARERBERA the consolidated income
[REMERIR statement for assets held at
EE2H]ET) the end of the year, under
‘Change in fair value of
investment properties’ (482,800) (225) (483,025)
R-F— j'LﬁE H—H8 At 1 January 2019 2,483,800 22,297 2,506,097
~aEEKE Fair value gains 26,900 1,475 28,375
EHHmE Currency translation differences - (456) (456)
R-T—NF At 31 December 2019
+=ZA=+—H 2,510,700 23,316 2,534,016
FARBHRWERE Total unrealised gains for
(B EF LT H éfF the year included in the
FFABRERRENR consolidated income statement
[REMERR for assets held at the end of
BEZHIET) the year, under ‘Change in fair
value of investment properties’ 26,900 1,475 28,375
KREMEZ A AABEEFERAEELER Fair values of investment properties have been
EEE S ERREAIUREERIREMR valued by the direct comparison approach
HEME - WREHEETS LTS Z assuming sale of the properties in their existing
AhREEXSER - states with the benefit of vacant possession and by

making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market.
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16 REWE (&)

ERAEXRBZERSUTEANE
18 (5834%) (&)

MESDRREEARAHAMSLE
WE - MABBRELHREH - &R
HE - 520X ERBHHRIEMEAL
R ARTTERYME Z(BIE © 1tHh -
HEFTEGFMEMNEEITELE
REMEEEEIERBERE  TL
B —RBHERETE—ERZZ
FWREHIT -

FAHEERDLEZS -

AEBRBCEHERLIREDE - ¥
WARE2ESF - A REEIZENE
EZIGHER - EHESERS A
He Hz—_T-_FTF+_-_HA=+—H
IEFE BEMEZHSRABELN A
B #67,476,000 (Z T —NF : B
71,535,0007T) * MAEBEER O A
75 #15,201,0007C (Z 2 — LL5F : B
15,373,0007T) ©

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

The valuation has been made on the assumption
that the owners sell the properties in the open
market without the benefit of deferred term
contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures, management
agreements or any similar arrangements which
would serve to increase the values of such
properties. In addition, no account has been taken
of any option or right of pre-emption concerning
or affecting the sale of the properties and no
allowance has been made for the properties to be
sold in one lot or to a single purchaser.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group leases out the investment properties
under operating leases, for an initial period of 2 to
3 years, with an option to renew on renegotiated
terms. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the gross rental income from investment properties
amounted to approximately HK$67,476,000 (2019:
HK$71,5635,000) and related direct outgoings
amounted to approximately HK$15,201,000 (2019:
HK$15,373,000).
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17 #HE

AMERHEBEAEESAEANE

() HEPHBARARFHNERREE

£ 4 BT 5 4RO 2 3118 DA T B R

17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial

EEMER position shows the following amounts relating
to leases:
—2-%F —ENF
2020 2019
BET T BB T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FHAEEE Right-of-use assets
& + b J + 3 (s A 42 Leasehold land and land use rights 74,948 76,105
T &kEF Factory and buildings 35,228 49,691
110,176 125,796
HEEE Lease liabilities
e E Current 5,147 19,756
IER B Non-current 27,946 30,583
33,093 50,339
B 5E - Notes:
ZERRHRERE NI B 4,023,0007T Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020
(ZZ=— 1% : B¥41,558,0007T) K5 A financial year were HK$4,023,000 (2019: 41,558,000).
WEE -

RAFEA  LEEFHE HE
% AEBERHEE BEFER
BEELHARBEEES1000T (=T
—NF: | EEBAEEAREND
B E218,0000T (ZF — L& -
| o

RZEZZTF+-_A=+—8"

ETRTEFHEAEBEANER
58,518,000 (ZZE— NF : B
60,166,0007T) 2 F FEE EER
# (F3E32) ©

During the year, the Group modified leases
with right-of-use assets amounted to
approximately HK$51,000 (2019: Nil) and
lease liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$218,000 (2019: Nil) under the mutual
agreement with landlord.

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank
borrowings are secured on right-of-use assets
with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$58,518,000 (2019: HK$60,166,000) (Note
32).
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17 #HE (&) 17 LEASES (continued)

(i) FEWERPAHNEERESE (i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement

FalWmKRITRTATEEERH The consolidated income statement shows the
Epfcak-CE following amounts relating to leases:
—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT BT IT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FAEEENITEXH Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
THE i & 4w (8 F Leasehold land and land use rights 2,220 2,226
Ik REF Factory and buildings 18,510 14,787
20,730 17,013
FEFAXZ GIABERZA) Interest expense (included in finance costs) 2,335 1,181
EHEHEENAX Expenses relating to short-term leases
(FFAEMEERS) (included in other operating expenses) 1,386 217
3,721 1,398
TETFHEBENRE ML BE The total cash outflow for lease liabilities in 2020
781%18,134,0007C (ZE—NF - 8 was HK$18,134,000 (2019: HK$14,222,000).

44,222 0007T) °
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=t—H AEERATIELT 25

18 BEQNTNKRE 18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
—EEHF — &
2020 2019
BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BERRnRE Investments in associates
—E(REEEE — Share of net assets 25,719 26,062
EEEEFEESHNT ! Movements in share of net assets is as follows:
—E-EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
BET T BT I
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
n—H—H At 1 January 26,062 28,235
iz 8 Dividend (1,500) (1,500)
JEAG B2 AR FE, (F18) Share of profit/(loss) of an associate 949 (636)
JEREE A NT 2 E¥#E  Share of currency translation
EZ¥ differences of an associate 208 (87)
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 25,719 26,062
RZEZEFRZE—NLF+ A As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had

interests in the following principal associate, which

ENAEEER is unlisted:
ARER AL B BEERRLH TEXK FEAE
Proportion Measurement
Name of company Place of incorporation of ownershlp interest %  Principal activity method
—g-%F “I-NF
2020 2019
EEERERARAA GEED RERBRER i
([ERERER]) R
Semk International Holdings Cayman Islands 10 10 Provision of licensing  Equity

Limited (“SIHL")

AEBERZE - ARAERERE
ZREE AR AHE IE’ R

BRBEEKRE ‘if‘jj R-E-THFEA— ﬂ
=t AR BRERERETET
EEA - EAE%E& REE /éi

9.37% °

services and
consultancy
services

The Group has the right to appoint one director to
the Board of SIHL and therefore regarded as having
significant influence in SIHL. Subsequent to 31
December 2020, SIHL went through several group
restructurings and the Group’s interest is diluted to
9.37% after the restructurings.
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18 BMEQTNRE (F)

AEBREEBEARZ s ZER

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

The Group’s share of revenue and results of its

EBHEEMBGENT : associate and its assets and liabilities, are as
follows:
—E-FF —ET-NF
2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BB E Total assets 296,299 288,923
FES=R Total liabilities (39,108) (28,302)
BEFE Net assets 257,191 260,621
& Revenue 99,759 87,215
FEMNB(HE) Profit/(loss) for the year 9,494 (6,356)

MBERBES R

FIEmPBENERERRNKREZ

FREE < H0R

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information

Reconciliation of the financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its interests in the

associate.

—B-%F —TNF

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

R+ -—A=+—8B2Z2&EFE Net assets at 31 December 257,191 260,621
JEHE EFE@10% Share of net assets @ 10% 25,719 26,062

JE(REEE QN RFIE, Share of profit/(loss) of an

(B1E) @10% associate @ 10% 949 (636)

ITREBREEERART 2020 FiF
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19 EEENER 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

—EEHF —E-NF

2020 2019

BET T BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

F’E{Eéqé}%ﬂﬁ Share of net assets 1,013,979 1,338,210
ERTEELE Loans to joint ventures 1,134,672 1,166,802
2,148,651 2,505,012
EEEEFECESHHMAT : Movements in share of net assets is analysed as

follows:

—2-¥F -—T-AF

2020 2019

BET T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

n—H—AH At 1 January 1,338,210 1,233,289
FE(RA & (K518) /FIE Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures (324,231) 104,921
R+=—RA=+—H At 31 December 1,013,979 1,338,210
R-B_ZEF+_-_A=+—H F5H As at 31 December 2020, the Group had interests

RATNELETEERECEXHEARER

in the following principal joint ventures, which are

unlisted:
DRER T AR L 3t B BEREEDRLH TEEH BEME HERFE
Place of Proportion of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of company incorporation interest % Principal activities relationship  method
2020 2019
Talent Chain Investments RB&BREE REER Pt s
Limited (Note) (Ff#t) BVI 35.7 35.7 Investment holding Note Equity
BREREERAR (M) &E NERE (i3 Ean
Crown Opal Investment Hong Kong 35.7 35.7  Property holding Note Equity
Limited (Note)
AEEARES NERE el Ean
Open Vantage Limited BVI 35.7 35.7  Property investment N/A Equity

ff3% :  Talent Chain Investments LimitedZ
Pt A RE RIEE R AR EMER
BEH - MEEBEFBLUNRBEENR
¥2F  HBE20ERAETERE - N=F
ZEF+ZA=+—8 ¥ 5 H)
98% (ZZT—NF :90%) B R R

A1
RNEED

Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Talent

Chain Investments Limited, is engaged in the business
of property holding. The property project represents the
holding of a commercial building in Kwun Tong, which
comprises 20-storey of office floors. As at 31 December
2020, 98% (2019: 90%) of the office portion were leased

and classified as investment properties.
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19 SN ER (F)

Talent Chain Investments Limited -
o R EE FR A A &Open Vantage
Limitedz 4 A & 7] » H A% {5 I & 7] BY
FHHWE -

RTINHEAEEMEBERNZAZ
CEZVHERBME -

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Talent Chain Investments Limited, Crown Opal
Investment Limited and Open Vantage Limited are
private companies and there is no quoted market
price available for their shares.

Set out below is the summarised financial
information for joint ventures that are material to the

Group.
Talent Chain b
Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
SESRF ZERNF ZRSRF CERNF ZECSRF RN
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

BRI BETT AR BB AR BRI
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BE ASSETS

e Non-current

BEMX  Investmentproperties | 6,825,594 1  7.726684 [0 18700 19,000 GO 7745684
FRYEELE  Totalnon-curentassels | 6825504 7726684 18700 19000 | 6,844204  7.745684
e Current

AOAERE  Towlcurentassets 284585 618679 49 49 284634 618728
AE LIABILITIES

i) Current

ENEZERR Trade payable and other

EninBak current liabilities (excluding

(TBESHBEE)  financial liabilities) (187,840) (226,002) (555) (433) (188,395) (226,435)
nBaERS Total current liabilities (187,840)  (226,002) (555) (433) (188,395)  (226,435)
i Non-current

SRBE Financial liabilities (3,586,228)  (3,676,228) (4,015) (4015)  (3,590,243)  (3,680,243)
EUF i h=Le Qther non-current liabilities (510,012)  (709,248) - - (510,012)  (709,248)
HRDARME Total non-current liabilities _____ (4,096,240) _ (4,385476) . (4015) ___ (4015) _ (4100255) _ (4,389491)
EESE Net assets 2,826,099 3,733,885 14,179 14601 2,840,278 3,748,486

st : REMEZAAEBEEABILMEERMN
HELECERBRAEREGEE - AR
REMERRAABESRINBFEIR -

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F

Note: Fair values of investment properties have been valued by
independent valuer with the direct comparison approach
and income capitalisation approach. The investment

properties are classified as Level 3 in fair value hierarchy.
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19 S ENER (B) 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Talent Chain b
Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
SRSRF ZERNF ZRCSRF O CERAF 0 ZECSRF RN
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

BETR BETT BRTR BBTL BRTR BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Y& Revenue 172,581 179,162 - - 172,581 179,162
TR Operating expenses (52,168) (60,129) (109) (127) (52,277) (60,256)
THAX Administrative expenses (86) (1,096) (13) (11) (99) (1,107)
RENELR Change in fair value of

EEED investment properties (1,207,496) 234,079 (300) 100 (1,207,796) 234,179
BERZEEL (Loss)/profit from continuing

(BR)/F8 operation (1,087,169) 352,016 (422) (38) - (1,087,591) 351,978
FrEmE2,/ (%) Income tax credit/(expense) 179,383 (58,083) - - 179,383 (58,083)
BRBRESELE  (Loss)profit after income tax

£%(F8) /B from continuing operation (907,786) 293,933 (422) (38) (908,208) 293,895
Ht2EKA Other comprehensive income - - = - = -
2W(BE) /WA Total comprehensive (loss)/

8% income (907,786) 293,933 (422) (38)  (908,208) 293,895
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19 S ENER (F)

MBERBEYR

ERMBEENREEbEEE 2K
E1E 2 ¥ 8k

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information

Reconciliation of the financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint
ventures.

—E-EHF —T-hF

2020 2019

BETT BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

R—A—RBZEEFE Net assets at 1 January 3,748,486 3,454,591

FE(E8E) /T8

(Loss)/profit for the year (908,208) 293,895

W+—ZRA=+—B2

Net assets at 31 December

BEFE 2,840,278 3,748,486
BEDEIERER Interests in joint ventures and

15 B EFE@35.7% share of net assets @ 35.7% 1,013,979 1,388,210
B (BB, Share of (losses)/profits

ME@35.7% of joint ventures @ 35.7% (324,231) 104,921

EXTRLCEREEM 2ENHBEA
RAK+ZEAEE - RfsAKENK
Hitksm  KELBRAKEREGELR
REFRLL MWD  cEERAR MAE
CERHZEFNEEEREAAE
BRE - ZFSBABEFHE -

RZZ_ZTF+-_A=+—H8 K&EEH
WEEBHZERERIBER 2 & RNERESHA
BfE-

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F

The loans to joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and will not be repaid in the coming
twelve months. They represent the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of the loans to the joint ventures approximate their
fair values. The amounts are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no capital
commitments nor contingent liabilities related to the
development project.
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20 B AR
R-ZZE-ZTF+_A=+—H  £EK

20 SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

BARIZFFBHT : December 2020 are as follows:
RAER AL ERTRAZRE AREEGRARERIL  FERH
Percentage of
Place of Issued and fully equity interest attributable
Name of company incorporation paid share capital to the Group Principal activities
gt 32 —E-NE
2020 2019
ABARRES 3TET RERR
Bollardbay Limited BVI US$357 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABEARES BE110T REER
Catel (B.V.1.) Limited BVI HK$110 100% 100%  Investment holding
HRERRF Bk BRI VESST]
Easywise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
KBEXBRAF B Ao REERREREER
BRATMRE
Siu Wai Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and
acting as an agent for
its immediate holding
company
ABABERES Ey REZR
Ubiquitous International Limited BVI US§$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ifez 2,500,000% 7T HEETEM
Welco Technology Vietnam Vietnam US$2,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Company Limited manufacturing
ESBR (BN ERAR hE 24,000,000% 0 HEETER
Welco Technology (Suzhou) PRC 1S$24,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited? manufacturing
ERIRMR(RIDERARS mE 30,000,000% 70 REETER
Welco Wong's Technology PRC 1S$30,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
(Shenzhen) Limited? manufacturing
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20 KMYE A A (&) 20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

198

NAER A 3t BERTRAEZRE ARERGRARZASL  TEXRH
Percentage of
Place of Issued and fully equity interest attributable
Name of company incorporation paid share capital to the Group Principal activities
“EIRF ZENF
2020 2019
ERHE (R BRARY e 7,500,000% 7T REEFEM
Wellop Technology (Shenzhen) PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited? manufacturing
102,799,653
IR g RERR
Wong’s Circuits (Holdings) Singapore $§102,799,653 100% 100%  Investment holding
Pte Ltd
IRETERREA B #11,000,0007C EYERESD
Wong's Electronics Company Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited trading
IRIX(RE)BERAA &k 5007 REZR
Wong's Industrial (Holdings) Hong Kong HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
AR 20,000,008 RERMHAR
Wong's International Japan Inc. Japan JPY20,000,000 100% 100%  Sales and marketing
*H 10,000% 7T mEhE
Wong's International USA United States of US$10,000 100% 100%  Marketing
Corporation America
IRRBERLDA BB %1007 ETEMES
Wong's Strategic Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Electronic products
trading
# BIBEFBEE  WARRINEBEBEDE - # The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under
PRC law.

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F
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20 ME LA (&)

21

ERINHEAEBEREFEATER
EASEIEFDEEFEIETEH
BRA - AAREZERAKEEEER
5 BOIEMHE AR Z 28 F 5B
DILEK e

Bm R E R RN HEA R
THBEHEE  RAEERARSH
BARGFEE -

BE_ZT-_TF+_HA=+—HIHF
EREMRERE - BB B E A B 3%
ITEREXR -

BARBEFARMGEZEEAN

() BARBEEFAHEMLEZERA
NEeMEEZDE

BARBEFAEGEZERAR
TRHEEBRIGFFIEFEETNR
AEH BAEBCRVITZHER
FRF 1 AT J80 (20 3h 528 428 %5 L 70 1tk 28
NER - ZEEFSREIRE
AAREER RIS REAHEBM -

20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21

The above lists the principal subsidiaries which
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive
length.

No summarised financial information for subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests is disclosed as the
Directors consider they are not material.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
in issue at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(i) Classification of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at
initial recognition to recognise in this category.
These are strategic investments and the
Group considers this classification to be more
relevant.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020 199



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 BERAAEBEFAHMEZEUW AL 21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
TREE (&) THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

(i) RAABEFTAEMEZEAKA (ii) Equity investments at fair value through
HRERE other comprehensive income
BAABEFAEMEZERKARN Equity investments at fair value through other
BREREBFUTHERKRE : comprehensive income comprise the following

individual investments:

—E-FF —T-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
R AES Listed equity securities
—REBLET — Listed in Hong Kong 28 126
—REBRINET — Listed outside Hong Kong 14 30
E N Unlisted equity securities 7,440 4,319
7,482 4,475
FhmEEME Market value of listed securities 42 156
—E-EF —E-NEF
2020 2019
BET T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FEmED Non-current 7,454 4349
mE Current 28 126
et Total 7,482 4,475
2T _TF+_A=+—H The changes in fair value of financial assets at
HFEBAE AL BETAEM fair value through other comprehensive income of
FHBRANEREEZ AABEE HK$507,000 (2019: HK$113,000) was recognised
&) A7 #507,0007T (ZE— N4 - for the year ended 31 December 2020.

7 #113,0007T) ©
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ATREZREREENELMREHR

(LIABILITIES)

e ISR M
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and

BED deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:
—2-%F —ENF
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BEFMSHEE Deferred income tax assets 27,301 27,642
RIEPRENREE Deferred income tax liabilities (70,136) (72,293)
ELEHEEEFE Net deferred tax liabilities (42,835) (44,651)

BIEFTSHARB S RENT

The movements on the deferred income tax account

is as follows:

i —T-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—HA—H At 1 January (44,651) (77,492)

RirE IR a= R ER Recognised in the consolidated income
(fFzE12) statement (Note 12) (3,398) 32,971
7 EL A 2 T R A T 3R Recognised in other comprehensive income 3,704 389
BE¥BmE=ZE Currency translation differences 1,510 (519)
R+=—A=+—8H At 31 December (42,835) (44,651)
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22 EEFEBEE (A1) (E) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)

Rt AR —HIE R 2 & 8RAT The movements in deferred income tax assets
BEFSHEERBERFAZE and liabilities during the year, without taking into
m consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BEMSEHEE : Deferred income tax assets:
fTEIR
HERERE B B#ES BEER DAEE g
Decelerated
tax Government Fair value
depreciation Provision grant Tax loss of derivative Total

BETL BRI BB ABTL AETL BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ-NF—F  At1January 2019

—H 4,547 12,781 3,557 - 294 21,179
REAM&ERT A Credited to the consolidated
income statement 4,854 3,483 1,658 564 - 10,559
REMZEBAGA  Credited to the other
comprehensive income - - - - 389 389
ERBEEE Currency translation differences (182) (298) (97) - - (577)
R=B-N% At 31 December 2019
+ZA=1+-H 9,219 15,966 5,118 564 683 31,550
RGESKREZNB  Charged to the consolidated
income statement (1,338) (5,919) (1,290) - - (8,547)
REMEABAG A Credited to the other
comprehensive income - - - - 3,704 3,704
EMBEER Currency translation
differences 409 714 276 - - 1,399
R-ZZ-Z£+=H At 31 December 2020
=+-H 8,290 10,761 4,104 564 4,387 28,106
RIEMEREE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
WEXR
MERERE BERAR okl
Accelerated Fair value
tax adjustment
depreciation on properties Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-NE—A—H At 1 January 2019 (5,471) (93,200) (98,671)
REaNEE (R) /A (Charged)/credited to the
consolidated income statement (5,042) 27,454 22,412
ERRAEES Currency translation differences 58 - 58
R-ZE-RAE+=-A=+—-H At 31 December 2019 (10,455) (65,746) (76,201)
RESRERTA Credited to the consolidated
income statement 1,363 3,786 5,149
EMAEER Currency translation differences 111 - 11

R-Z-2%+-A=1+-H

At 31 December 2020 (8,981) (61,960) (70,941)
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EEFFEREE (&) () 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)
BELEMEHEEDRAERBNGE NS Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
Hz%ﬁﬂﬂ@ﬂﬁu%R?'J/F'EJm‘i%ﬁﬁEfﬁfr tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the
EoHMEBBETER RZE_F realisation of the related tax benefit through future
+-—HA=+—8" $;%I—IH%LATEE¢J taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
RRFBE B RBAHRIEBEEN A 2020, the Group has estimated unused tax
751258,788,0007T (ZFE—1LF : B losses of approximately HK$258,788,000 (2019:
169,668,0007T) ° R 7% & 45 5 HK$169,668,000) available for offsetting against
ZHIBEBZARRERGFNBEERA future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
AHENEN#E TS  BRRREE recognised in respect of the tax losses as the
BHRRETERESE - HEMBATH realisation of the related tax benefit through future
TRIAE 18 498 #215,493,0007T 7] £ R taxable profit from these tax loss carry-forwards
Hige mAERNBARNHEIEEE is not probable. The tax losses amounted to
#) 78 #43,295,0007T Bl Al 45 88 = — approximately HK$215,493,000 from Hong Kong
“HhHF - subsidiaries can be carried forward indefinitely,
the tax losses amounted to approximately
HK$43,295,000 from PRC subsidiaries can be
carried forward until 2025.
AptE TR E MR &M E A E 8 No deferred tax liability has been recognised in
ROEGRBAERNTFENBERIELTT respect of the withholding tax on the undistributed
HAE  WIHBERDIERZERDIKRE retained profits of certain PRC incorporated
BANHNEEI s RZT_FTF+_-A subsidiaries as the distribution of these
=+—8 - NEERF E T MA L AT undistributed retained earnings is not probable.
BAEE H¥B 4B %1,306,202,000 As at 31 December 2020, the Group’'s PRC
ﬁ(f%i JLE B %1,155,151,000 incorporated subsidiaries have approximately
T0) Z AR IRARE FE o Bt B R K HK$1,306,202,000 (2019: HK$1,155,151,000)
V2B AR IKERE ZEAED undistributed retained profits in aggregate. The
HMENFE%E10% © applicable withholding tax rate on dividend
distributed by PRC incorporated subsidiaries is
ranged from 5% to 10%.
A 23 INVENTORIES
—E2-%F —ENF
2020 2019
BET T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 150,521 120,596
vaYe Work in progress 57,986 51,832
B Finished goods 105,059 146,806
313,566 319,234
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23

24

7E (&)

BHE_T-_TF+_A=1+—B81L
FE 7 E B #E R B 30,592,000
T(ZE—NLEF  FTEBRBEK
27,850,0007T) fEér & W m KR WY [ AT
{Q%Z%*'*&%%%Dujﬁmﬂ

23 INVENTORIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the reversal of provision for inventories of
HK$30,592,000 (2019: the provision for inventories
of HK$27,850,000) was recognised in ‘raw materials
and consumables used’ in the consolidated income
statement.

EERYERE 24 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES
—E-ZF ZE-NF
2020 2019
BT T T I
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
Wn—H—H At 1 January 236,350 368,365
B MEFEZREAE Impairment losses of stock of
518 completed properties (22,940) -
HEETKMERE Sales of stock of completed properties — (132,015)
R+=-—A=+—8H At 31 December 213,410 236,350
ETERMEFTERR Stock of completed properties comprised:
. —TNF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
[BES YNEE=A: Commercial office units 193,060 216,000
B Car parking space 20,350 20,350
213,410 236,350

RZEZEF+_A=+—H BE=x
RYEGFEZMHMNES  WIRA
IR R(E B 213,410,000 (—Z— N
F B ¥236,350,0007T) FIE - EE &
A W i\%mﬁ maﬁﬁ;ﬂﬁ/%ﬁ%
22,940,0007C (ZZE—NLF : &) o
&%%T%E%ﬂﬁﬂf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ?xzjﬁ
o (H5E32) -

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F

As at 31 December 2020, stock of completed
properties are all located in Hong Kong and carried
at net realisable value amounted to HK$213,410,000
(2019: HK$236,350,000) with net impairment loss
of HK$22,940,000 (2019: Nil) was recognised in
the consolidated income statement. The stock of
completed properties were pledged as collateral for
the Group’s borrowings (Note 32).
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25 BWE SR

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES

—E-ZF —ZE-NF

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

JEUE BRI Trade receivables 914,115 878,695
W EUWE BRI ZEME  Less: allowance for impairment

BE of trade receivables (1,974) (2,564)

912,141 876,131

AEBETESGEPZBREREEN
F30HZE120B8 1% - B I &EWEUL A
PN

AEBRAREEERR - —z‘}xﬁff,ﬁ
R—EZ=ER BUEFHERSEE
B o ARERREFBRRIEHIH %&T@K
ZRRWGRIE - URREE R - AEE
I 48 3 8 WE 5 BR SR S BRH B () 3R
R RAEMEERIER - 2RE
BABTEHmA BGS  BKB 5K
A TETR -

AEERWEZIERFIREZAHZIE
oM

The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade
customers mainly ranges from 30 days to 120 days
and no interest is charged.

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The general credit terms range from one to
three months. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables to minimise its credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables by
invoice date is as follows:

i —TNF

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

0%260H 0 - 60 days 572,521 550,971
61290H 61 - 90 days 186,848 154,132
B iE90H Over 90 days 154,746 173,592
914,115 878,695

KEEEAD B MRS ERFEI5 AT
EEBHEEFBEB S E  BERE
WE SERE A FHTE R SRS - MY
A3 1(b)IRE BB EZBHE IS -

BUREZER2EEEEAAEBE
BE

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about
the calculation of the allowance.

The carrying amount of trade receivables
approximate their fair values.
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25 BWE 5 KRR (E&)

AREBRKE SRR ZEEEI TS

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables

BHEHE are denominated in the following currencies:
—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT BT IT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
ETT United States dollar 371,249 499,638
AR Chinese renminbi 489,534 306,516
e Hong Kong dollar 53,332 72,541
914,115 878,695
26 ANFE -FTEREMEWEET 26 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
—E-ZF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BrEEZIES: Deposits for fixed assets 6,568 15,225
ERFE Prepayments for inventories 17,377 5,487
JiE Ly 1B B Value added tax receivables 8,127 4,207
W ERHES Effective rent receivable 1,223 2,539
EEBNAEEEES Management and utility deposit 5,539 5,539
JE U SR 17 FI B R A Bank interest income receivables 5,180 8,690
HEib IR R FBEFIE  Other receivables and prepayments 57,459 53,708
101,473 95,395
B FEREELD Less: non-current portion (12,107) (20,537)
BN, Current portion 89,366 74,858
TEHIE - Al REMEKRER CRE The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits

BT EETE and other receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

206

—E2-%H —TNF

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’'000

AR Chinese renminbi 31,376 37,398
ETT United States dollar 880 4,339
ks Hong Kong dollar 64,634 48,858
H Japanese yen 1,679 4,737
MEE Vietnam dong 2,128 -
Hit Others 776 63
101,473 95,395

IREBREEBERDR 2020 F3F
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27 FEUWEEE N B FKIE 27 AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

—E-FF —E-NF

2020 2019

BT T BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

JE Y B 5 2 B SRR Amounts due from associates - 14
FEUNES 2N RN IE AW - B N The amounts due from associates were unsecured,
EEENH REEHEEZEZAAEE interest-free and without pre-determined repayment
BaE . terms. The carrying amounts approximated their fair

values.

28 BERESZEY SH}RITHF 28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
ZRSREES SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

—E-FF —TNF

2020 2019

BETT BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FHEEAS Cash on hand 346 332

RITHFER Cash at bank 679,856 542,982

ReERBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 680,202 543,314
REHA ABB=MA2  Short-term bank deposits with original

B g HER 1T IF 3K maturity over three months 738,916 641,886

SRR HIIR & Restricted cash 2,981 25,949

ReMBReFEEYR Cash and cash equivalents and
REHIRITIF K short-term bank deposits 1,422,099 1,211,149
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28 BERBESLZEY  EHRTE

MEZRFRE (&)

RBekReFEY BHRTERER
RFBEEATIEEE

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and restricted cash were denominated in
the following currencies:

—E-FF —E-NF

2020 2019

BETT BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

& Hong Kong dollar 65,785 97,042
AR Chinese renminbi 481,266 254,051
ETT United States dollar 863,276 853,450
HA Others 11,772 6,606
1,422,099 1,211,149

BITTFERZNMEFTHERFENR A
2.66% (—ZF— L : 3.60%) °

RITFFRENGERITFRNEZ
T B R ERELH B o

R K52 ETF 5108 #1,218,098,0007T

—ZT— N5 : B%966,646,0007T) T3
RABEEE  BETEMINEETIER
TE o ZEEMINEBTITHRTEHTEHER
REOESHRS  TREEFB—K
B8 o

RZE_ZTEF+_RA=+—H &%
2,981,000t AR IRITHBEIERE HIZ
CRENZREFR  EUAAREE
B IHegR_T-__F+—HIH-
N-ZE—-NE+-_A=+—08 B
25,949,0007T (& # 7 %11,580,0007T
DBEARBEE) ARBRITRHAEERSE
Nz BRRESRHRENIRHF
FoHUARESE  Ien=—Z=
TE+_RE_ZT-_—FAFH-

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

The weighted average effective interest rate on
bank deposits was 2.66% (2019: 3.60%) per
annum.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$1,218,098,000
(2019: HK$966,646,000) are held in China and
are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through normal dividends.

As at 31 December 2020, HK$2,981,000 were
restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
electricity deposits and are denominated in Chinese
renminbi which will mature in November 2022. As
at 31 December 2019, HK$25,949,000 which will
mature from December 2020 to June 2021, of which
HK$11,580,000 was classified under current assets,
were restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
electricity deposits and custom deposits and are
denominated in Chinese renminbi.
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TTEEMIA

TETEEREKEYFREMIER
e AW WITET AT LR
% Blgst THIARBOMOBRT#H
BB - AEEBEU M TESRTA:

29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.
However, where derivatives do not meet the
hedging criteria, they are classified as ‘held for
trading’ for accounting purposes below. The Group
has the following derivative financial instruments:

—EC-EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
BE =R BE BfE
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BT BETr BT BETx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
) 2= 4 51 Interest rate swaps
—®HEEERE - held-for-trading = = 1 -
& 4= A Interest rate swaps
—He R — cash flow hedge - 26,592 75 4,217
- 26,592 76 4,217

KREMREHEHONR T -_TFE+ -4
T t+t—HZR2ELXASBEARAK
1,000,000,0007C (—ZE— NG : B
1,003,450,0007T) °

METIESBERZRAANEBET AER
MNeREENBBEYANIZARBER
AR HTRARR - BRIFBEREFT
B AIER o MITAE T AR RS
KET_EARGEE IE25AERS
BEXEE BHEARATHXZHT g
RZEZZF(ZE—NF: 2T
F)RE -

AEBEBRSREM P2 ST HES
RHtE2.10 - BEEETETEARE
EFfRZAERBRBELHEME33

The notional principal amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap contract at 31 December 2020
was HK$1,000,000,000 (2019: HK$1,0083,450,000).

Derivatives are classified as financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
unless they are designated as hedges. They are
presented as current assets or liabilities if they are
expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period. The outstanding
interest rate swaps will mature in 2022 (2019:
2022).

The Group’s accounting policy for its cash flow
hedges is set out in Note 2.10. For information
about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives please refer
to Note 3.3.
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30 ERESKRN 30 TRADE PAYABLES
AREERENESERRKERAMZE Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables by
BOMmT invoice date is as follows:

—E-FF —E-NF

2020 2019

BT BT IT

HK$’000 HK$'000

0%260H 0 - 60 days 586,833 520,152
61290H 61 - 90 days 40,407 100,299
H#iBo0H Over 90 days 41,038 53,198
668,278 673,649
AREBENESERERXZETENTY) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade
BEHEEE payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

—E-FF —T-NF

2020 2019

BT ST I

HK$’000 HK$'000

it Hong Kong dollar 147,599 165,675
AR Chinese renminbi 107,204 210,545
ETT United States dollar 378,968 267,181
H Japanese yen 13,184 8,350
E Euro 20,535 21,654
HEE Vietnam dong 556 -
EHAh Others 232 244
668,278 673,649

210 ITREREEARAR 2020 i
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31 EfERAREMEMNERR 31 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT IT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FEET B B R AR A Accrued employee benefit costs 113,608 97,831
H fth f& B2 IE Other tax payables 6,492 2,814
FEETAIE - A REETFER Accrued freight, delivery and storage
charges 13,721 13,510
JEEt AHRFEEER Accrued utilities charges 1,362 1,350
JEET RIS B Accrued construction payables 21,123 19,158
BB R EZY A Deferred income in relation to
government grant 16,936 21,125
EHAh Others 30,125 47,894
203,367 203,682
W ERBE S Less: non-current portion (11,290) (15,844)
mEN B Current portion 192,077 187,838
AREEERFERALEMEMNERRZE The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and
HEN T E®EE : other payables are denominated in the following
currencies:
—g-®F —T-n4
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
AR Chinese renminbi 115,724 117,743
ok Hong Kong dollar 63,528 78,601
ETT United States dollar 19,341 5,524
HE & Vietnam dong 3,160 1,264
H Japanese yen 1,324 246
Hith Others 290 304
203,367 203,682
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32 EX 32 BORROWINGS
—E2-%F —ENF
2020 2019
BT T R T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
EREUORIRTTE SN - ML Trust receipt bank loans, unsecured 324,943 237,773
FRHSRITE R EIKE Short-term bank loans, unsecured 410,000 320,000
B RAEIBITER - Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FRNEE BHEHE repayment within one year, secured 119,065 151,848
B RAEIBITER - Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FREE BEH repayment after one year, secured 1,184,662 1,226,565
BER Total borrowings 2,038,670 1,936,186
—E-FF —T-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERE Non-current 1,184,662 1,226,565
mE Current 854,008 709,621
BER Total borrowings 2,038,670 1,936,186
RZZEZZF+_A=+—0 " KAfE At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings
ERZEEBROAT were repayable as follows:
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
1FE R Within 1 year 854,008 709,621
1&224F Between 1 and 2 years 435,008 700,247
2E 5 Between 2 and 5 years 749,654 526,318
BE R Total borrowings 2,038,670 1,936,186

212 ITREREEARAR 2020 i
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32 EX(&)

R-ZE-_TE+-_A=+—H Ak
1,303,727,000t (ZZF — NF : B
1,378,413,0007T) 2 K EAER 1T B B A
T3 IEARE

e RZTEEF+-_RA=+—8"
BREIE A %20,911,0007T (==
— L4 : B #21,499,0007T) 2 ¥
¥ BELREZE REHEHNEE
58,518,0007C (ZE— NF : B
60,166,0007T) Z F REEE « Bk
B #)7%8#1,579,000,0007T (=&
— L4 : B #2,501,100,0007T)
CEEMEREEBENBER
213,410,0007C (=& — L& :
7 #236,350,0007T) Z B &K
MEFE 2R

e AREERNEED®HETalent Chain
Investments Limited225.7% (==
—NF :25.7%) DB RO R

e ARA—ZXREEE2EWMBRAA
=M IR A 760,000,0007T 2
AR -

RZZE-_ZEF+_A=+—H &%
BzERBRARRRTE 2 EERRE
R&& o

Br Lt I8 REEE R EE TR L

RITHEIN 2 35 T B A5 IR I 224 -

AngER B HARE - AKRAEE
BN AR EEES -

32 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the long-term bank loans
of HK$1,303,727,000 (2019: HK$1,378,413,000)
were secured by the following:

e As at 31 December 2020, charges over
property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately HK$20,911,000
(2019: HK$21,499,000), right-of-use assets
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$58,518,000 (2019: HK$60,166,000),
investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately 1,579,000,000
(2019: HK$2,501,100,000) and stock of
completed properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$213,410,000 (2019:
HK$236,350,000);

e A share charge over the Group’s 25.7% (2019:
25.7%) share of Talent Chain Investments
Limited, a joint venture of the Group;

e A guarantee limited to HK$760,000,000 from
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings
were secured by the corporate guarantee given by
the Company.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by certain banks.

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.
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32

33

BEX(E)
FRBERZEMEEE QAR BEME
= @fcff@maw;z% KA E2.62%

—NF :3.32%) R ZBEER
TE%E’\\”&/‘ET BEEFRF2MH -

AEBERZEEENKEEE-

ERRBEHRRZERFNERNT :

32 BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amount of the non-current borrowing
approximates its fair value. The fair value is based
on the cash flow discounted using a rate based on
the borrowing rate of 2.62% (2019: 3.32%) and is
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

—E_EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
RERITER Long-term bank loan 1.30% -1.78% 3.80% -4.36%
SRR IRTTE K Trust receipt bank loans 0.77% -1.29% 2.54% -3.39%
WESRITER Short-term bank loans 1.10% -1.45% 3.68% -3.75%
B% 2= 33 SHARE CAPITAL
BRHEE H{E
Number of Nominal
shares value
BT T
HK$'000
FREESBE0.10T 2 L@ Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
JETE AN Authorised:
R-ZZE-hE—-—H—HB- At 1 January 2019,
—E-hEFE+ZA=+—HEK 31 December 2019 and
—E_EF+-A=+—H 31 December 2020 700,000,000 70,000
EBITREERA Issued and fully paid:
R=-B-NE—-HA—H8- At 1 January 2019,
—E-hF+ZA=1+-HK 31 December 2019 and
—EC-EF+-A=1+—H 31 December 2020 478,483,794 47,848

FA - ARBREEFMERRRER
B HELBEARAEFALHES

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.
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34 f#fE (&)

fizta :

B sEDb -

REEZBERBBEREEN-ANE
FEABENERRRG 2 HE
BERR BB BB 21T 0 2 E{E M
EZER-

RERMERETA - RRARRFERA
Mo PR SZ R 48 8 2 BT B R R 2R 9 B — &P
HEBENERHEBEFEBER)
E-REHREERREES -

SR EER S BEREEIED
FERZERE TERERAKELT
EVI0RBREZE—RFEE-FH
BERZATA M) A 2 ORI IR B 0 TR Al
BREZHE SREBEREINSE
BB E AR 250% - RIAT#EAEDE
M — 2 DI - —REHETARE
HIBEFREBRIARNEITARED -

REERREESMS  PEZANL
PHESEFET CXBREASA
AREBRERR -

BE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=+—HIL%F
& & #4,159,0007T (Z T — N F -
751613,617,000T) EH L E — M HEHE
REREERES -

FTREREBERAT 2020 FH

34 RESERVES (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the acquired subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of

the Group’s reorganisation in 1990.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion of
their after - tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses)

to the general reserve and the enterprise expansion fund.

For the general reserve, the PRC entities are required
to transfer at least 10% of its net profit, as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the
statutory general reserve. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
owners. When the balance of reserve reaches 50% of
each entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation
is optional. The general reserve can be utilised to offset
prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus

shares.

For the enterprise expansion fund, the percentage of
appropriation is determined annually by the directors.
The enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the

development of business operations.

During the year ended 31 2020,
HK$4,159,000 (2019: HK$13,617,000) was appropriated

to the general reserve and the enterprise expansion fund.

December
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FERETRER 35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS
(a) BRATSBIAT (B5E) FEEE (a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before
EEENRESFHEIYHERNT income tax to net cash generated from
operations is as follows:
—E-FFE —E-NF
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BEEE Operating activities
BETERA (E518),  (Loss)/profit before income tax
pIpE (735,630) 304,569
BTFZIEFE Adjustments for:
BEE KA — F 58 Finance costs — net 37,292 44,873
ElEE&EE Share of losses/(profits) of joint ventures
Eia, (F1H) 324,231 (104,921)
JEAG — KB & A A Share of (profit)/loss of an associate
(FIH8),/E#E (949) 636
e Depreciation 70,921 69,204
TR T AZAZIEIWZE Unrealised gains on financial instrument - (20)
HEWE BE K& Gains on disposals of property,
=2 Was plant and equipment (198) (288)
EWEZ ZEERZHWIE  (Reversal)/provision of impairment
B8 (), #E losses on trade receivables (590) 698
HE S S8 s Gains on lease modification (167) -
EEKUEFEZ Impairment losses of stock of
BB completed properties 22,940 -
WEMEN AR EE Change in fair value of investment
oy properties 483,025 (28,375)
LEESEHA 2 Operating cash flows before changes in
KEHEME working capital 200,875 286,376
FE Inventories 25,734 175,279
BEREKMEFE Stock of completed properties - 132,015
JEWE 5 BR R Trade receivables 5,492 54,236
ENRIE 52 Prepayments, deposits and other
K2 EL th, & U5 BR X receivables (3,592) 12,354
BB SRR Trade payables (24,630) (82,504)
JEFrB R R EM Accruals and other payables
J& 1+ BR X (9,084) (32,620)
BREE Contract liabilities 16,725 17,472
EBEBEEMNRS Cash generated from operations 211,520 562,608
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 FERETREK (F) 35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS (continued)
(b) ERERERAN HEWE (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds
BMEREZEMESNEEE from disposals of property, plant and
equipment comprise:
—E-FF —T—-hF
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
REEE Net book amount 589 1,768
HEME - WE R Gains on disposals of property,
= W plant and equipment 198 288
EE%% % = & Proceeds from disposals of property,
RAEFT 1S A plant and equipment 787 2,056
(c) ERFHEHER (c) Net debt reconciliation
RENH TR & 258 F'aﬁ%i‘%f%%ﬁ This section sets out an analysis of net debt
DT REBFEE and the movements in net debt for each of the
period presented.
—E-EF —T-AF
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
REIRITIER Short-term bank deposits 738,916 641,886
HeMBeEED Cash and cash equivalents 680,202 543,314
HEBE-REBEH Lease liabilities — current portion (5,147) (19,756)
fﬁﬁ,\ﬁ\ JERBNERY  Lease liabilities — non-current portion (27,946) (30,583)
BER-AR—FRNEE Borrowings - repayable within one year (854,008) (709,621)
%TTJX*ZEB/\ F1%1E€iE Borrowings - repayable after one year (1,184,662) (1,226,565)
B F 8 Net debt (652,645) (801,325)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 MERERER (H) 35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS (continued)
(c) BB FEHER(E) (c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)
BfhEE HEED AR
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
CE CE
ReR it -ER -AR
RESEY BER BERE  -FARE  -FARE 4
Cash and Borrowings  Borrowings
cash Short-term Lease  -repayable  -repayable
equivalents  bank deposits liabilities  within one year after one year Total

R EETR EETRL BRI BRI BRI
HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000

R-E-1E-5-R Net debt as at

LEREE 1 January 2019 47737 500,395 (23,641) (738751) (1422432 (1,236,692)
Bine Cash flows 112,300 146,180 14222 233,497 (8,500) 497,699
HERS Foreign exchange adjusiments (16,723) (4,689) 638 - - (20,774)
WERE Acquisition of leases - - (41,558) - - (41,558)
Efr#Be8y Other non-cash movements - - - (204,367) 204,367 -
RZE-NE+ZA=1-B  Netdebtasat

LEREE 31 December 2019 543,314 641,886 (50,339) (109,621)  (1,226,565) (801,325)
Bine Cash flows 59,990 89,039 18,134 (102,484) - 64,679
HERE Foreign exchange adjustments 76,898 7,991 2917 - - 87,806
WERE Acquisition of leases - - (4,023) - - (4,023)
EtiReEy Other non-cash movements - - 218 (41,903) 41,903 218
RZEZFETZA=1-B  Netdebtasat

LEREE 31 December 2020 660,202 738,916 (33,093) (854,008)  (1,184,662) (652,645)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 NAIEE2HKEMRKKHEE 36 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

) FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT
—ECZEE —T-hF
2020 2019
BT T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current asset
MEBARAMZE  Investments in subsidiaries 563,366 563,366
RBEE Current assets
FENFE FTek Prepayments, deposits and
H b e UK BR 3k other receivables 315 307
JE W Bt /8 2 R 3RIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 448,774 392,631
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,575 1,726
. 450,664 394,664
WEE Total assets 1,014,030 958,030
EE EQUITY
BEREXATEEA Equity attributable to owners
2R of the Company
P AR Share capital 47,848 47,848
Hoth 1 Other reserves Bt sENote 675,934 675,934
fRER & F Retained earnings B 5FNote 68,903 64,841
owm Totalequity 792,685 788,623
=R LIABILITIES
REAE Current liabilities
fEETE A M E M E[BRFK Accruals and other payables 3,057 3,333
FEATBY /B & Bl 5RIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 218,288 166,074
wes® Total liabilites = 221,345 169,407
HERREE Total equity and liabilities 1,014,030 958,030
REBEEFE Net current assets 229,319 225,257
BEERRBER Total assets less
current liabilities 792,685 788,623
R RER _E-_—F=A=+H The financial statements were approved and
BREEgHERKETE  WH T3 authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
EERKREZE: 30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:
T B TEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
TEFRTHAES BE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PAEIBH 2B MRRER#EHE 36 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
25 (&) FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT (continued)

Wix: ARARFHEZE Note: Reserves movement of the Company

RBEE EFEEFE BRRK REBF k]

Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained

premium reserve surplus earnings Total

BETIT BB T BB T BT BETIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R-Z-NE—-HF—8 At 1 January 2019 153,025 345 522,564 65,174 741,108
FEFHE Profit for the year - - - 42,731 42,731
—E-NFEMNRE Dividends paid relating to 2019 - - - (43,064) (43,064)
R-ZZ—AF+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2019 153,025 345 522,564 64,841 740,775
FEFE Profit for the year = - = 27,987 27,987
—E_TFEMRE Dividends paid relating to 2020 - - - (23,925) (23,925)
R-Z-ZH+=-"H=+—H At 31 December 2020 153,025 345 522,564 68,903 744,837

ARA 2 BEHBHRIEAEER - NANTFEARF K
DAFTEEHEARBREEFEREEER
NEBEEmMETRO ZEEMEZZE - RE
REPERARBZ ARMAEER - ARG Z BEHBH
D IR T AR

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the book values of the underlying net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company, and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1990. Under the
Companies Act and the Bye-laws of the Company, contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 EIE 37 COMMITMENTS
(@ ME -BELREH®HZERNEE (a) Capital commitments in respect of property,
AT plant and equipment are as follows:
—E-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
BEFR BB
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BEIAB R B Contracted but not provided for 9,457 14,095
EEEERFTD Authorised but not contracted for — -
9,457 14,095
(b) R—E-_FTF+_-_A=+—8" (b) As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s future
REERBZHAABECEE rental income receivables under various
BFLEHERRERZHS I non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
ADITT rented premises are analysed as follows:
. —TNF
2020 2019
BET T BB T T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 26,024 56,136
F_ZERF (BIEEREME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 5,605 23,434
31,629 79,570
KEHEWREASEREEAE Operating lease receipts represent rentals
HEMFERR2HS - B LM receivable by the Group for leasing its
CHRFEHFH2IFEBLET investment properties. Leases and rentals are
“E—NF:23F) - negotiated and fixed for an average of 2.3

years (2019: 2.3 years).
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38 MEAEIXRS

RZZEZTF+ZA=+—0H ' ARQ7A
ZEBEABRRASTAKREE(EARER
Salop Hong Kong Limited * H Jy R 1%
2EHERLEH AT -

(a) gﬁgﬁﬁ*izmﬂ
fHﬁZHﬁ%%@ﬂ&é%ﬁ%#lﬁﬁ

REETBRRK - BBEIERD
Bl &AM FE27 K219 ©

(b) #ER

RZZE_TF+-_A=+—8"
RARIRENBRAERLOBE
3,010,368,0007T (=& — L4 :
75 #3,104,004,0007T) 2 R 17 @b
B MIRTTIREFEER -

RZEZTF+_A=+—A80"
MEBARFBAMNEME LN A B
2,038,670,0007C (=& — L% :
75 #1,936,186,0007T) °

(c) TEEEAERMH

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the largest shareholder
of the Company was Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(personally and via Salop Hong Kong Limited, a
company wholly-owned and controlled by him).

(a) Balances with related parties

The amounts due from associates and joint
ventures are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The terms are
set out in Notes 27 and 19 respectively.

(b) Guarantee

As at 31 December 2020, the Company
has provided corporate guarantee given to
the banks in respect of banking facilities
of approximately HK$3,010,368,000 (2019:
HK$3,104,004,000) granted to its subsidiaries.

The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at

31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$2,038,670,000 (2019: HK$1,936,186,000).

(c) Key management compensation

—E-EHF —E—NF

2020 2019

BETT BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

e KRR Salaries and allowances 15,926 15,689

TE4T Bonus 5,687 9,788
BRIKE KA Pension costs

— REMH-HEE — defined contribution schemes 54 42

21,667 25,519
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Schedule of Principal Properties

R-ZF-FFF=—HA=+—H Asat37 December 2020
CREL i
DREERNLE 3 (¥R HEET fig RESR RRER rREER
Approximate Gross Stage of Group
Name of property and location Type Floor Areas (sq.m.) Lot Number Purpose  Lease Expiry Completion Interest
iR RENZF

Investment properties in Hong Kong

BENEERREESS

One Harbour Souare 9% + 10 + 128 - “EMLE

1566 1615 178 - 168 - 198 R0 g BRARITIR Bz RA=TH B A

9th, 10th, 12th, 15th, 16th, 17th, 18th, 1%thand  Office 12,089 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
20th floors, One Harbour Square, Inland Lot No. 173

181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

S “ENLE

One Harbour Square 43EBE(: & B nalkii i3 ~AZTE B3

43 car parking spaces, One Harbour Square, ~ Car parking 53 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, spaces Infand Lot No. 173

Hong Kong

fiRERZERANERE

Stock of completed properties

in Hong Kong

FENEEAERAGE JENLE

One Harbour Square 78 fing Bk BAE ~A=TH B

Tth floors, One Harbour Square, Office 1,354 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Inland Lot No. 173

Kowloon, Hong Kong

FENEEAERAGT JENLE
One Harbour Square 14E/BE( BEl Bk ik ~A=TH B

14 car parking spaces, One Harbour Car parking 175 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, spaces Infand Lot No. 173

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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